ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS - On-Call Professional Services



ADDENDUM No. 01

San Mateo County 555 Government Center, Fifth Floor Redwood City, CA 94063

RFP: No. 2022-001 through 2022-006

On-Call Professional Services

Date: May 5, 2022

INTENT:

This Addendum is issued by the County of San Mateo to provide for modification and clarification of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for On-Call Professional Services dated April 18, 2022. Proposers shall ascertain prior to submitting its Proposal that is has received all addenda issued. Please clearly note the addendum date and number on your proposal.

In the event of a conflict between the terms and provisions of this Addendum and the terms and provisions of the RFP for On-Call Professional Services, the terms and provisions of this Addendum shall control. In all other respects, the RFP for On-Call Professional Services shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

- 1. Updated RFP 2022-004 On Call Structural Engineering Professional Services to correct numbering of the content sections in the RFP document to reflect numbering values shown in the Table of Contents (Page No. 4-29)
- 2. Updated RFP 2022-005 On Call Electrical Engineering Professional Services Section 4.1 Minimum Qualifications to remove Bullet Point 2 regarding vertical transportation service experience (See attached).(Page No. 30-53)
- 3. Updated RFP 2022-006 On Call Professional Energy Consulting and Design Services to correct the pre-proposal meeting platform. (Page No. 54-77)
- 4. Questions & Answers (Page 1-3B)
 - q. On RFP 2022-004 for Structural Engineering Services, it seems sections 2 through 4, is this correct?
 - a. The numbering format on RFP 2022-004 was incorrect. The sections were inadvertently numbered sequentially as 1.1 through 1.22 rather than broken into the 6 sections indicated in the Table of Contents. Refer to the attached revised RFP 2022-004 for Structural Engineering Services.
 - q. The scope of work for structural engineering has incidental items listed. Are they separate or part of the contract that will be established?

County of San Mateo RFP On-Call Professional Services

- a. Each RFP will include verbiage that may relate to other specialties. Task order will be based on a specific discipline, but there may be incidental tasks of another discipline that we would expect to be included. For example, a design for the repair of a structurally deficient retaining wall might include incidental design items such as civil, plumbing or electrical engineering for a complete design. We want the design team to have the ability to cover the primary discipline and the incidental design items as well.
- q. Do we apply for both the mechanical and structural in one submission?
- a. While you are not required to submit for more than one RFP, you must submit individual proposals for each RFP in which you seek to be awarded a contract.
- q. A lot of projects are listed, and no one firm will be an expert in everything. If a firm is experienced in 90% of the projects, but not the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD). Will that disqualify you from being selected?
- a. No, it won't disqualify you if you do not have OSHPD experience. We review the proposals to ensure that the firm is a good fit for the specific need of the specific RFP and that the firm has the knowledge, experience, and capacity to complete the projects they would potentially be presented. We have a wide range of projects because the county has so many different departments and environments. We do have the San Mateo Medical Center, which is and OSHPD facility however, that is only one of many aspects of the County. While OSHPD experience is helpful, it is certainly not a requirement.
- q. Structural Supplemental Documents Section 1.8c, county forms are not attached in Structural RFP, are the documents located somewhere else?
- a. There are no specific County documents being requested. We have asked that each proposal be sure to include a rate sheet to include, at a minimum, the rates listed in each RFP.
- q. The Electrical RFP states "financial document may be requested post proposal. Mechanical does not say that. Is this true, or does Mechanical, for example, need to disclose the financial state as well?
- a. Unless specifically requested, no supplemental documents are required at this time.
- q. Can you expand on what you mean by "minimal qualifications" for Electrical 4.1 bullet point two regarding "Vertical Transportation"?
- a. This was an error in the document. Vertical transportation experience is not a requirement of the Electrical Engineering RFP.
- q. Energy- 4.1 minimum qualifications "...last five years in the state of California" can you clarify the design aspect
- a. Ability to produce drawings. The Energy RFP will consider qualifications and compare to projects that are upcoming this year. The ideal situation will include the ability to produce drawings.

County of San Mateo RFP On-Call Professional Services

- q. We were unable to attend the pre-proposal meeting, can we still submit a proposal for our services?
- a. Yes, the pre-proposal meetings were not listed as mandatory.
- q. Is there any information available on the buildings? (Use, Size, Location, and any energy use information)
- a. Because the County has a vast inventory of differing structures and facilities, no specific building information has been included. Building specific information would be provided in the individual Task Orders issued under these contracts.
- q. Are you requesting full fees or just hourly rates?
- a. Price proposals should be submitted as hourly rates based on the rates requested in the RFP's.
- q. On page 7 (labeled not PDF), Item 10, Optional Additional Services, notes that LEED Consulting and Green Building Policy support services may be required under this contract. Are there specific aspects relative to the core requested services that may require LEED input or are there other projects that may require LEED?
- a. There are no specific aspects identified related to LEED at this time. A Task Order issued for a particular facility or scope may include LEED requirements to ensure for example, compliance with or improvement on existing LEED status.
- q. On page 15 of the RFP under 4.1 Minimum Qualifications one of the bullet points specifies the following: "Firms shall have extensive knowledge of available project delivery systems allowed under California Public Contract Code, and make such recommendations as to their applicability as appropriate." Can you clarify what is meant by "project delivery systems" that are allowed under the California Public Contract Code, or can you point me to a resource that defines this?
- a. Please refer to California Public Contract Code. In general, knowledge of alternative project delivery methods such as design-build, design-bid-build, etc.
- q. We see a table for professional rates noted in the RFP. Is that sufficient information for pricing proposals or are expenses (printing, job site visits, travel) to be accounted for or can it be noted as reimbursable expenses?
- a. Addtional service rates can be provided in addition to those rates required by the RFP however, the evaluation will only be based on the required rates listed in the RFP.
- q. For Structural RFP, section 1.9 (Proposal submission) allows for Electronic Copy submission and in the first page states that Hard Copy proposals are required. However, for Mechanical RFP, section 3.3 (Proposal submission), no requirement for electronic copy submission and in the first page states that both Hard Copy and Electronic copy required. Can you clarify if both hard copy and electronic copy is required for the submission?
- a. Confirmed, both hard copy and electronic copy are required. Both versions should have the price proposal/ rate sheet, separated from teh technical proposal.

County of San Mateo RFP On-Call Professional Services

- q. Please clarify if the project understanding should be placed in the technical proposal or Price Proposal.
- a. Please conform to the RFP requirements; project understanding would be included within the technical proposal.
- q. Can you please clarify the evaluation criteria as the total does not add up to 100%?Pages 13-14 state 40% method and approach, 40% experience and organizational capacity and 10% price.
- a. Correction has been made to the RFP, evaluation criteria shall be 40% method and approach, 40% experience and organizational capacity and 20% price.
- q. For the pricing table, can we assign an annual escalation rate? The table on page 14 states a 'Year 3 Increase %' only
- a. Please submit rates as specified in the RFP Section 4.4.
- q. Will the County accept proposals from a team with subcontractors?
- a. Yes
- q. Is it acceptable to include additional pages in section B. Technical Proposal to describe a team's qualifications in addition to the 6 pages designated for case studies?
- a. Yes, the page restriction is for case studies, and not for technical qualifications
- 9. Will the County consider extending the due date of the proposal due to the short time between the scheduled release of answers and the due date?
- a. Yes, please refer to Addendum #2 extending the proposal due date and time to May 17, 2022, at 2:00pm PST.
- q. Under Section B.1, what is expected in a case study? Does this describe project execution of a particular project in a much-detailed way? Please clarify
- a. Each example case study should be limited to one page and provide an example of a typical case study focused on the specific discipline being submitted.
- q. Under Section B.4, since the RFP does not specify a specific project, what kind of physical space or equipment is mentioned here?
- a. Please refer to RFP Section I BACKGROUND and/ or Section II ANTICIPATED SERVICES for examples of physical space or equipment.
- q. Under Section C.1, C.5, and D.2, let us know where we can find County forms for minimum qualifications, attachments, certifications, forms, templates, and forms for price proposal.
- a. Per RFP, County forms are to be used if provided and as applicable. No County forms have been provided, Pricing is to be based on requested rates and may include additional rates. Evaluation and scoring will be based only on requested service rates.

3B	Initial and Date:
~-	ilitiai aliu Date.



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

NO. 2022- 004

On Call Structural Engineering Professional Services

Solicitation Number	2022-004
Number of contracts expected to be awarded	Up to 3
Estimated Value or Range per contract	\$300,000.00
Funding Sources	□Federal □State 図County 図Other
Expected Contract Duration	36 months
Options to Renew	1 option at 24 additional months
Hard Copy proposals required	Hard (1) Original; Electronic (1) Copy
County Mailing Address (for hard-copy communication & proposal submissions)	County of San Mateo Department of Public Works 555 County Center, 5th Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 Attention: Roxanne Maquinana
Authorized Contact Person	Roxanne Maquinana
Authorized Contact Person E-mail (for electronic-copy communication)	rmaquinana@smcgov.org
E-mail Address for Protests	tnewman@smcgov.org
RFP Released	April 18, 2022 PST
Pre-Proposal Meeting Date and Time	May 3, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Pre-Proposal Meeting Location	via Zoom Meeting ID: 823 8368 3111 Passcode: 770344
Deadline for Questions, Comments and Exceptions	May 5, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Respond to Questions	May 10, 2022 by 2:00pm PST
Proposal Due Date and Time	May 12, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Interviews (If required)	Week of May 16, 2022
Submission to County Board for Approval	June 2022
Anticipated Contract Award Date	June 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	I - GENERAL INFORMATION	3
1.1	STATEMENT OF INTENT	3
1.2	BACKGROUND	3
1.3	DEFINITIONS	3
SECTION	II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS	5
	ANTICIPATED SERVICES	
2.1	FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS	
2.2		
2.3	PREVAILING RATES	
SECTION	III - INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS	7
3.1	PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES	7
A.	Questions, Comments, Exceptions	7
В.	Revisions to the Solicitation	7
С.	Contact with County Employees	7
D.	Pre-proposal conference and site visits	7
3.2	PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS	7
A.	Proposal Format	7
В.	Technical Proposal Contents	8
С.	Supplementary Documents	8
D.	Price Proposal	8
3.3	PROPOSAL SUBMISSION	9
A.	Submit proposals as directed below.	9
В.	Errors in Proposals	9
3.4	PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS	9
3.5	WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS	10
3.6	NO COMMITMENT	10
3.7	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	10
3.8	PROPOSER SELECTION	10
A.	Determination of Responsiveness	10
В.	Proposal Evaluation	10
C.	Determination of Responsibility	10
3.9	CONTRACT AWARD	10
A.	Notice of Intent to Award	10
В.	Award Procedure	11
С.	Commencement of Performance	11
3.10	PROTESTS	11
A.	Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address	11
В.	Protest Deadlines	11
С.	Protest Contents	11
D.	Reply to Protest	11
E.	No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest	12
3.11	PUBLIC RECORDS	12
A.	General	12
В.	Confidential Information	12

SECTIO	N IV - QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA	13
4.1	MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS	13
4.2	ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE	13
Α.	Organizational Capacity:	13
В.	Experience	13
4.3	REFERENCES	13
4.4	EVALUATION CRITERIA	13
SECTIO	N V - INSURANCE	15
5.1	SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY	15
SECTION	N VI - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	16

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 STATEMENT OF INTENT

This Request for Proposals (RFP) seeks submittals for highly qualified consultants to provide Mechanical Engineering consulting services. The requested services will be utilized in capital projects within the County of San Mateo managed under the Department of Public Works ("DPW" or the "Department"). The target start date and term for the proposed services are subject to negotiation of a final agreement, through the completion of the projects. DPW intends to bring under contract up to three (3) on-call firms to provide services on an as-needed basis each with an aggregate fiscal obligation not to exceed \$300,000.00 during a maximum individual term of three (3) years. Separate projects/assignments under each agreement will be issued as "Task Order(s) – Notice(s) to Proceed" as warranted. The target commencement date for the proposed services is **June 2022.**

1.2 BACKGROUND

The Department of Public Works ("DPW" or the "Department") plans, designs, constructs, operates, manages and maintains all County-owned facilities to ensure they are safe and accessible to residents and clients of County agencies, the general public, and County employees. DPW has a budget of approximately \$200 million and is staffed with over 300 employees in four divisions: Administrative Services and Airports, Engineering and Resource Protection, Facilities Services and Road Services, supporting the 46 special districts governed by the Board of Supervisors and administered by the Department.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

Business Day: Monday through Friday except for holidays as observed per the California Government Code.

Confidential Information: Information in any form that is not generally known and treated as confidential by a party, including business, financial, statistical, and non-public personal information, trade secrets, know-how, applications, documentation, schematics, procedures, Personally Identifiable Information, information covered by legal privilege, and other proprietary information that may be disclosed or incorporated in materials provided to one party by the other, whether or not designated as confidential, whether or not intentionally or unintentionally disclosed, and whether or not subject to legal protections or restrictions.

Contract Materials: finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, specifications, lists, manuals, software, and other written or recorded materials produced or acquired by the Contractor pursuant to the Contract for or on behalf of the County, whether or not copyrighted.

Contract: The agreement between San Mateo County and Contractor awarded pursuant to this solicitation.

Contractor: The person or other entity awarded a Contract in conformance with the terms of this solicitation and any subsequently-agreed upon terms.

County Data: All information, data, and other content, including Confidential Information and other information whether or not made available by San Mateo County or San Mateo County's agents, representatives or users, to a Contractor or potential Contractor or their employees, agents, representatives or Subcontractors, and any information, data and content directly derived from the foregoing, including data reflecting user access or use.

County Systems: The information technology infrastructure of San Mateo County or any of its designees, including computers, software, databases, networks, and related electronic systems.

County: San Mateo County

Deliverables: Goods or services required to be provided to San Mateo County under the Contract.

- **DUNS (Data Universal Numbering System):** a proprietary nine-digit number issued by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc. to identify unique business entities.
- **Force Majeure:** An event or circumstance not caused by or under the control of a party, and beyond the reasonable anticipation of the affected party, which prevents the party from complying with any of its obligations under the Contract, including acts of God, fires, floods, explosions, riots, wars, hurricane, sabotage, terrorism, vandalism, accident, governmental acts, and other events.
- Hosting: Storage, maintenance, and management of hardware, software, and San Mateo County Data by a party other than San Mateo County, on machines and at locations other than those operated by San Mateo County, where a party other than San Mateo County has regular responsibility for back-up, disaster recovery, security, upgrades, replacement, and overall responsibility for ensuring that all hardware and software continues to function as intended.
- **Key Employee:** Employees of the Contractor jointly identified by San Mateo County and the Contractor as possessing unique skill and experience that was a material consideration in San Mateo County's decision to award a contract.
- **Maintenance Updates:** Any revision, update, improvement, modification, enhancement, correction, bug fix, patch, or new release for a system, platform, software or other product, including any change made as a result of applicable federal, State, or local law.
- Major Change: A change to the specified performance, maintainability, operation, power requirements, compatibility, measurement, user interface, reliability, quantity, scale, quality, terms, delivery method, or requirement of any product or service that affects the obligations of the parties or reflects a substantial alteration in circumstances surrounding the agreement, or is of such a nature that knowledge of the change would affect a person's decision-making process.
- **PII (Personally Identifiable Information):** information in any format that can be used to identify a specific individual, either used alone or combined with other private or public information that can be linked in some way to a specific individual.
- **Project Manager:** The individual identified by San Mateo County as San Mateo County's primary contact for the receipt and management of the goods and services required under the Contract.
- PST: Pacific Standard Time, including Pacific Daylight Time when in effect.
- **Subcontractor:** Firms engaged by the Contractor to perform work or provide goods pursuant to the Contract, including vendors and suppliers.
- **Task Order or Purchase Order:** A written request from San Mateo County to a vendor to provide goods or services, indicating types, quantities, prices and delivery criteria.

SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

.1 ANTICIPATED SERVICES

The County is seeking structural engineering services for a variety of County projects requiring the latest structural and seismic provisions. The work will include structural analysis, design, peer review, and evaluation. Work may include but will not be limited to the design of new facilities, existing facilities, detention centers, health facilities and hospitals.

The scope of work will be established prior to the issuing of a task order; projects may include all phases of the project development and may include, but is not limited to the following:

- Footings
- Foundations
- Building pads
- Inspections
- Seismic retrofit and rehabilitation
- Structural modeling and analysis
- Building Information Modeling (BIM)

Consultant shall provide all back up calculations for any structural design elements. The Consultant will also provide field inspection of existing structural elements to ensure compliance with approved design plans and specifications. The Contractor may be required to provide some or all of the following items:

- Analysis
- Building Information Modeling (BIM)
- Reports
- Quality Control
- Value Engineering

Length of Agreement: The anticipated duration of the agreement will be for three years.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

- 1. Consulting firm is licensed to practice structural engineering in the State of California, and is able to effectively provide the required professional services.
- 2. The individual or individuals or sub-consultants who will be assigned the responsibility to projects shall have significant experience in structural design and construction consulting within the last five years in the State of California.
- 3. Firms shall be able to meet the schedule set by County of San Mateo Department of Public Works.
- 4. Experience in providing designer of record services pertaining to the California Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD) projects.

2.2 FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS

Poter tial staff are required to pass a Live Scan (DOJ and FBI) background check at the contractor's expense prior to working in County facilities. Potential staff shall follow the directions provided by the Deputy Director of Facilities or his designee to complete this process and will not begin work in a County facility until they have been officially notified in writing by the Deputy Director of Facilities that they have received background clearance.

2.3 **PREVAILING RATES**

The services contemplated under this procurement include "public works". For all such work funded by this Agreement, the Contractor is required to comply with state prevailing wage law, Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code, commencing with Section 1720 and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000, for any "public works" as that term is defined in the statues, including all applicable flowdown provisions. For purposes of complying with prevailing wage laws, the Contractor

must comp	ns applicable to an aw	arding body. <u>https:/</u>	/www.dir.ca.gov/Pub	olic-Works/Prevailing-

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS



PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES

Questions, Comments, Exceptions

Submit questions, comments, and exceptions, including notifications of apparent errors, to Tory Newman at tnewman@smcgov.org by the deadline for questions, comments and exceptions. Questions and comments received after the deadline may not be acknowledged.

(1) Request for changes

If requesting changes to a part of this solicitation, identify the specific words or phrases and the sections and paragraphs in which they occur. State the reason for each request and provide alternative suggested language. Failure to submit requests by the deadline will be deemed a waiver of any exception. The County's consideration of a suggestion does not imply acceptance. If sufficient proposals are received with no requested changes, the County may reject those requesting changes.

- (2) Request for Substitution of Specified Equipment, Material, or Process
 - (a) Unless otherwise stated in the solicitation, references to items or processes by trade names, models or catalog numbers are to be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and not construed as limiting competition.
 - (b) If requesting a substitution for a required item, submit requests by the deadline for questions, comments, and exceptions. Furnish all necessary information required for the County, in its sole judgement, to make a determination as to the comparative quality and suitability of any suggested alternatives. The County's decision will be final. If alternatives are accepted, the County will issue an addendum to the solicitation.
- B. Revisions to the Solicitation

The County may cancel, revise, or reissue this solicitation, in whole or in part, for any reason. Revisions will be posted as addenda on https://publicworks.smcgov.org web site. Proposers are responsible for ensuring that they have received all addenda from the Department of Public Works.

C. Contact with County Employees

Violation of the following prohibitions may result in a proposer being found non-responsible, barred from participating in this or future procurements, and becoming subject to other legal penalties.

- (1) As of the issuance date of this RFP and continuing until it is canceled or an award is made, no proposer or person acting on behalf of a prospective proposer may discuss any matter relating to the RFP with any officer, agent, or employee of the County, other than through Public Purchase, to the Authorized Contact Person, or as outlined in the evaluation or protest procedures.
- (2) Proposers may not agree to pay any consideration to any company or person to influence the award of a contract by the County, nor engage in behavior that may be reasonably construed by the public as having the effect or intent of influencing the award of a contract.
- D. Pre-proposal conference and site visits

If a pre-proposal conference or site visit is scheduled, answers to questions raised prior to and at the events will be posted on Public Purchase.

PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS

Proposal Format

Number all pages of the proposal. Label and order each section as follows:

(1) Cover letter - no longer than one page, signed by an individual authorized to execute legal documents for the proposer, identifying the materials submitted.

- (2) Authorized contacts identify the name and title the person to contact regarding the proposal, as well as all other individuals authorized to represent the organization in contract negotiations.
- (3) Table of Contents, listing all major topics and their respective page numbers.
- (4) Exceptions to the solicitation, or to the final revised solicitation, if any.
- (5) Technical Proposal
- (6) Supplementary Documents, as requested
- (7) Price Proposal

B. Technical Proposal Contents

- (1) The Technical Proposal should include a list of qualifications and a maximum of (2) two one-page case studies.
- (2) Explain responses so as to be understood by people unfamiliar with industry jargon. Use drawings, diagrams, schematics and illustrations as needed, but do not simply refer readers to an exhibit or other section of the proposal in lieu of a complete response.
- (3) Addressing each requirement outlined in this solicitation in the order presented, describe how the requested goods and services will be provided.
- (4) If applicable or requested, include a project schedule with milestones, deliverables, dates, and a project management plan.
- (5) Specify any needs for physical space or equipment that the County must provide during the engagement.
- (6) Explain how work, equipment, and knowledge will be transitioned to the County or a new vendor at the end of the contract period.

C. Supplementary Documents

If additional documents and materials are appropriate, or have been requested by the County, provide in the following order as applicable:

- (1) Minimum Qualifications, using County forms if provided.
- (2) Organizational Capacity and Experience, describing work of a similar nature undertaken for a similar entity.
- (3) Financial Documents.
- (4) Samples, drawings, illustrations and related items.
- (5) Attachments, certifications, and forms, executed as applicable.

D. Price Proposal

- (1) Place all cost and pricing data in a separate sealed envelope clearly marked "PRICE PROPOSAL".
- (2) If forms and templates are provided for the Price Proposal, use them without modification. Failure to use the forms or templates provided, or modification of them, may result in rejection of the entire proposal.
- (3) Alternative Price Proposals may be submitted, but only in addition to, not in lieu of, the requested Price Proposal. If submitting an alternative Price Proposal, clearly identify it as an alternative.
- (4) Include prices for the base period of service and if applicable, for each additional year including option years.
- (5) Unless otherwise indicated, when applicable, in the price of an item, include all licenses required for operation, as well as upgrades and revisions to software over the term.

3.3 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

Submit proposals as directed below.

- (1) Hard copy submissions
 - (a) If hard copy submissions are also requested, submit proposals with all required documents in a sealed package to the designated County mailing address. Within the package, submit the Technical Proposal and the Price Proposal in separate envelopes. Clearly mark the following information on the outside of the package:
 - Proposer Name
 - Return address
 - Solicitation title
 - Solicitation number
 - (b) Submit proposals and all required documentation so as to physically reach the designated address by the Due Date and Time.
 - (2) Electronic Copy Submissions
 - (a) Within the package, submit a memory stick with the Technical Proposal, the Price Proposal and all required documents into separately named files.
 - (b) Submit proposal with all required documents within the Hard Submission sealed package to the designated County Mailing Address.
 - (c) Clearly mark each file name with the following information:
 - Proposer Name
 - Solicitation title
 - Solicitation number
 - Proposal Type
- (3) Hand-written responses, whether or not submitted electronically, will be rejected, with the exception that signatures may be hand-written.
- (4) Conflicts between Certain Requirements

Prior to the submission deadlines and solely relating to a determination of the timeliness of questions, comments, and proposal submissions, information displayed on the Department of Public Works website will take precedence in the event of a discrepancy between that information and the information within the solicitation documents. For all other discrepancies, the information in the solicitation documents will take precedence.

B. Errors in Proposals

The County will not be liable for any errors in proposals. Proposals may be rejected as unresponsive if they are incomplete, are missing pages or information, or cannot be opened for any reason. The County may waive minor irregularities but such waiver will not modify any remaining RFP requirements.

PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS

By submitting a proposal, each proposer certifies under penalty of perjury that:

- Its submission is not the result of collusion or any other activity that would tend to directly or indirectly influence the selection process; and
- Proposer is able or will be able to comply with all requirements of this solicitation at the time of contract award; and
- Neither proposer, its employees, nor any affiliated firm providing the requested goods and services has
 prepared plans, specifications, terms or requirements for this solicitation, or has any other actual or
 potential conflict of interest; and

Proposer is aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the California
Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees, and is unaware of any
financial or economic interest of any County officer or employee relating to this solicitation.

3.5 📈 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

Proposals may be withdrawn, modified, or replaced at any time prior to the Due Date and Time. After that time, whether or not a new solicitation is issued for the same subject matter, withdrawal of a proposal may preclude the proposer from participating in the procurement as a proposer or subcontractor, except that an original equipment manufacturer may participate indirectly through a reseller.

3.6 NO COMMITMENT

Neither submission of a proposal nor the County's receipt of proposal materials confers any right to the proposer nor any obligation on the County. This RFP does not commit the County to award a contract, nor will the County defray any costs incurred in preparing proposals or participating in any presentations or negotiations.

3.7 **TESTIMATED QUANTITIES**

If the solicitation results in an indefinite quantity or a requirements Agreement, the goods and services actually requested by the County may be less than the maximum value of the Agreement and there is no guarantee, either expressed or implied, as to the actual quantity of goods and services that will be authorized under the Agreement.

3.8 **PROPOSER SELECTION**

At any time in the evaluation process, the County may request clarifications from proposers.

A. Determination of Responsiveness

A responsive proposal conforms to the instructions set forth in this solicitation and any modifications to it. Non-responsive proposals will be rejected. The County, in its sole discretion, may waive non-consequential deviations if the deviations cannot have provided an advantage over other proposers.

B. Proposal Evaluation

The County will establish an evaluation committee which will evaluate responsive proposals based on the criteria specified in the solicitation. The committee may then recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms, or may invite one or more proposers for oral presentations and demonstrations, following which those proposers may be allowed to amend their proposals. After evaluating presentations and amended proposals, the committee may recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms.

C. Determination of Responsibility

The County will make a determination of the responsibility of any proposer under consideration for award, taking into consideration matters such as the proposer's integrity, compliance with public policy and laws, past performance, fiscal responsibility, trustworthiness, financial and technical resources, capacity, and experience to satisfactorily carry out its responsibilities. The County will notify any proposer found non-responsible and allow the finding to be contested.

CONTRACT AWARD

Notice of Intent to Award

Once a decision has been made to award a contract to one or more proposers, the County will post a Notice of Intent to Award, notifying the remaining proposers of their non-selection. The posting may be inclusion of the recommendation to award as an agenda item on the Board of Supervisors schedule.

B. Award Procedure

Contract negotiations are neither an offer nor an implicit guarantee that a contract will be executed. Award, if made, will be to the responsive, responsible proposer offering the overall best value to the County for the services and goods described in this solicitation, or as applicable, for a specific portion of the services and goods described. Any agreement reached will be memorialized in a formal agreement using the attached Standard Agreement template.

C. Commencement of Performance

After all parties have signed the Agreement, the County will notify the proposer and performance may proceed. Prior to County execution of the Agreement, no County employee may authorize work. Any work performed prior to that time may be uncompensated.

3.10 PROTESTS

Protests that do not comply with the protest procedures outlined below will be rejected.

- A. Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address
 - (1) Protests or objections may be filed regarding the procurement process, the content of the solicitation or any addenda, or contract award.
 - (2) The County will only review protests submitted by an interested party, defined as an actual or prospective proposer whose direct economic interest could be affected by the County's conduct of the solicitation. Subcontractors do not qualify as interested parties.
 - (3) Submit protests to Senior Capital Projects Manger by e-mail to Tory Newman at tnewman@smcgov.org or via hard copy to: Tory Newman, Senior Capital Projects Manager, 555 County Center, 5th Fl, Redwood City, CA 94063.

B. Protest Deadlines

Submit protests with any supplemental materials by 5:00 p.m. PST, as appropriate, on the deadlines set forth below. The date of filing is the date the County receives the protest, unless received after 5:00 p.m. PST, or other than a Business Day, in which case the date of filing will be the next Business Day. Failure to file by the relevant deadline constitutes a waiver of any protest on those grounds. Supplemental materials filed after the relevant deadline may be rejected by the County.

- (1) If relating to the content of the solicitation or to an addendum, file within five Business Days after the date the County releases the solicitation or addendum.
- (2) If relating to any notice of non-responsiveness or non-responsibility, file within five Business Days after the County issues such notice.
- (3) If relating to intent to award, file within five Business Days after the County issues notice of Intent to Award. No protests will be accepted once actual award has been made.

C. Protest Contents

- (1) The letter of protest must include all of the following elements:
 - (a) Detailed grounds for the protest, fully supported with technical data, test results, documentary evidence, names of witnesses, and other pertinent information related to the subject being protested; and
 - (b) The law, rule, regulation, ordinance, provision or policy upon which the protest is based, with an explanation of the violation.
- (2) Protests that simply disagree with decisions of the Evaluation Committee will be rejected.

D. Reply to Protest

The County will send a written response to the protestor and to any other party named in the protest.

E. No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest

Nothing in these protest requirements will prevent the County from proceeding with negotiations or awarding a purchase order or contract while a protest is pending.

PUBLIC RECORDS

General

- (1) All proposals, protests, and information submitted in response to this solicitation will become the property of the County and will be considered public records. As such, they may be subject to public review.
- (2) Any contract arising from this RFP will be a public record.
- (3) Submission of any materials in response to this RFP constitutes:
 - (a) Consent to the County's release of such materials under the Public Records Act without notice to the person or entity submitting the materials; and
 - (b) Waiver of all claims against the County and/or its officers, agents, or employees that the County has violated a proposer's right to privacy, disclosed trade secrets, or caused any damage by allowing the proposal or materials to be inspected; and
 - (c) Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the County for release of such information under the Public Records Act; and
 - (d) Acknowledgement that the County will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the person or entity submitting the materials.

B. Confidential Information

- (1) The County is not seeking proprietary information and will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the proposer. Proposers are responsible for asserting any applicable privileges or reasons why a document should not be produced in response to a public record request.
- (2) If submitting information protected from disclosure as a trade secret or any other basis, identify each page of such material subject to protection as "CONFIDENTIAL". If requested material has been designated as confidential, the County will attempt to inform the proposer of the public records request in a timely manner to permit assertion of any applicable privileges.
- (3) Failure to seek a court order protecting information from disclosure within ten days of the County's notice of a request to the proposer will be deemed agreement to disclosure of the information and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of such information.
- (4) Requests to treat an entire proposal as confidential will be rejected and deemed agreement to County disclosure of the entire proposal and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of any information requested.
- (5) Trade secrets will only be considered confidential if claimed to be a trade secret when submitted to the County, marked as confidential, and compliant with Government Code Section 6254.7.

QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

4.1 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Proposals will be accepted only from organizations that meet the following required qualifications at the time of proposal submission:

- The proposer has been actively and normally engaged for the past five years in the manufacture, sales, or leasing of the types of products and services described in this solicitation.
- The proposer is legally authorized to do business in the State of California.

4.2 ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE

Provide all of the following regarding the prime proposer and if applicable, all joint proposers.

- A. Organizational Capacity:
 - (1) Titles and names of staff members who will be on the team responsible for the project, as well as the expected availability of the various individuals. If requested, include the resume of a dedicated, full-time project manager.
 - (2) All applicable licenses and license numbers relevant to the project, the names of the holders of those licenses, and the names of the agencies issuing the licenses.
 - (3) If portions of work will be performed by subcontractors, names of proposed subcontractors other than suppliers and descriptions of their respective responsibilities.
- B. Experience
 - (1) The number of years providing services similar to those contemplated
 - (2) The number of years providing services to government entities

4.3 REFERENCES

Provide at least three references from successfully completed projects of similar nature to that described in this solicitation, including the name of the organization for which work was performed, and the name, phone number, and e-mail address of an individual at the organization who was responsible for managing and accepting the work. Ensure that contact information is current. If the County cannot contact the reference because of incorrect or out-of-date information, the reference will be deemed not to have been provided.

4.4 **EVALUATION CRITERIA**

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the following evaluation criteria:

- 45% Method and approach
 - Apparent understanding of the scope of services to be provided
 - Appropriateness of the proposed solution/services
- 30% Experience and organizational capacity
 - Qualifications and experience of both the proposer and key personnel
 - Experience with other public agencies
 - Organizational resources and staff, apparent ability to meet any required timelines or other requirements
- 25% Price

Use a pricing rate table similar to the one below:

PROFESSIONAL RATES		RATES PER HOUR		
	2022	2023	2024	OTHER
Principal				
Project Manager				
Registered Architect or Engineer				
Designer				
CAD Tech				
Administrative				
Other				

INSURANCE

Provide evidence of insurance for each of the checked categories

General Liability (Including operations, products and completed operations, as applicable.)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, the general aggregate limit either must apply separately to this project or must be twice the required occurrence limit.
Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 - per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
Workers' Compensation	As required by the State of California
Employers' Liability	\$1,000,000 - each accident, \$1,000,000 policy limit bodily injury by disease, \$1,000,000 each employee bodily injury by disease.
Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence.
Cyber Liability	\$5,000,000 per occurrence for Privacy and Network Security, \$1,000,000 per occurrence for Technology Errors and Omissions To be carried at all times during the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter.
Pollution Liability	\$ - Per Occurrence
Pollution Liability (Aggregate)	\$

SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY

If the work involves services or goods related to computers, networks, systems, storage, or access to County Data or to any data that may, alone or in combination with other data, become Confidential Information or Personally Identifiable Information, the following insurance is required.

(1) Privacy and Network Security

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liability and remediation arising out of unauthorized use of or access to County Data or software within Contractor's network or control. Provide coverage for liability claims, computer theft, extortion, network breach, service denial, introduction of malicious code, loss of Confidential Information, or any unintentional act, error, or omission made by users of Contractor's electronic data or systems while providing services to the County. The insurance policy must include coverage for regulatory and PCI fines and penalties, crisis management expenses, and business interruption. No exclusion/restriction for unencrypted portable devices/media may be on the policy.

(2) Technology Errors and Omissions

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liabilities arising from errors, omissions, or negligent acts in rendering or failing to render computer or information technology services and technology products, including at a minimum, coverage for systems analysis, design, development, integration, modification, maintenance, repair, management, or outsourcing any of the foregoing.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

These are attached for information only. Do not complete this form. The final agreement between the County and any successful proposer will be based on this template.

ATTACHMENT A – Agreement Between County of San Mateo and Contractor

ATTACHMENT A

Agreement No.	
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO A name]	ND [Contractor
This Agreement is entered into thisday of, 20 County of San Mateo, a political subdivision of the state of California, hereinaft [Insert contractor legal name here], hereinafter called "Contractor.	
"Whereas, pursuant to Section 31000 of the California Government Code, Cou independent contractors for the furnishing of such services to or for County or and;	• •
Whereas, it is necessary and desirable that Contractor be retained for the purp [Enter information here].	pose of

Now, therefore, it is agreed by the parties to this Agreement as follows

Exhibits and Attachments

The following exhibits and attachments are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference:

Exhibit A—Services
Exhibit B—Payments and Rates
Attachment H—HIPAA Business Associate Requirements
Attachment I—§ 504 Compliance
Attachment IP – Intellectual Property

Services to be performed by Contractor

In consideration of the payments set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit B, Contractor shall perform services for County in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A.

2. Payments

In consideration of the services provided by Contractor in accordance with all terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A, County shall make payment to Contractor based on the rates and in the manner specified in Exhibit B. County reserves the right to withhold payment if County determines that the quantity or quality of the work performed is unacceptable. In no event shall County's total fiscal obligation under this Agreement exceed [write out amount] (\$Amount). In the event that the County makes any advance payments, Contractor agrees to refund any amounts in excess of the amount owed by the County at the time of contract termination or expiration. Contractor is not entitled to payment for work not performed as required by this agreement.

3. Term

Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall be from [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of start year], through [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of end year].

4. <u>Termination</u>

This Agreement may be terminated by Contractor or by the [Title of County Department Head] or his/her designee at any time without a requirement of good cause upon thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the other party. Subject to availability of funding, Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for work/services provided prior to termination of the Agreement. Such payment shall be that prorated

portion of the full payment determined by comparing the work/services actually completed to the work/services required by the Agreement.

County may terminate this Agreement or a portion of the services referenced in the Attachments and Exhibits based upon the unavailability of Federal, State, or County funds by providing written notice to Contractor as soon as is reasonably possible after County learns of said unavailability of outside funding.

County may terminate this Agreement for cause. In order to terminate for cause, County must first give Contractor notice of the alleged breach. Contractor shall have five business days after receipt of such notice to respond and a total of ten calendar days after receipt of such notice to cure the alleged breach. If Contractor fails to cure the breach within this period, County may immediately terminate this Agreement without further action. The option available in this paragraph is separate from the ability to terminate without cause with appropriate notice described above. In the event that County provides notice of an alleged breach pursuant to this section, County may, in extreme circumstances, immediately suspend performance of services and payment under this Agreement pending the resolution of the process described in this paragraph. County has sole discretion to determine what constitutes an extreme circumstance for purposes of this paragraph, and County shall use reasonable judgment in making that determination.

5. Contract Materials

At the end of this Agreement, or in the event of termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, and other written materials (collectively referred to as "contract materials") prepared by Contractor under this Agreement shall become the property of County and shall be promptly delivered to County. Upon termination, Contractor may make and retain a copy of such contract materials if permitted by law.

6. Relationship of Parties

Contractor agrees and understands that the work/services performed under this Agreement are performed as an independent contractor and not as an employee of County and that neither Contractor nor its employees acquire any of the rights, privileges, powers, or advantages of County employees.

7. Hold Harmless

a. General Hold Harmless

Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description resulting from this Agreement, the performance of any work or services required of Contractor under this Agreement, or payments made pursuant to this Agreement brought for, or on account of, any of the following:

- (A) injuries to or death of any person, including Contractor or its employees/officers/agents;
- (B) damage to any property of any kind whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging;
 - (C) any sanctions, penalties, or claims of damages resulting from Contractor's failure to comply, if applicable, with the requirements set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and all Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended; or
 - (D) any other loss or cost, including but not limited to that caused by the concurrent active or passive negligence of County and/or its officers, agents, employees, or servants. However, Contractor's duty to indemnify and save harmless under this Section shall not apply to injuries or damage for which County has been found in a court of competent jurisdiction to be solely liable by reason of its own negligence or willful misconduct.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty

to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

b. Intellectual Property Indemnification

Contractor hereby certifies that it owns, controls, and/or licenses and retains all right, title, and/or interest in and to any intellectual property it uses in relation to this Agreement, including the design, look, feel, features, source code, content, and/or other technology relating to any part of the services it provides under this Agreement and including all related patents, inventions, trademarks, and copyrights, all applications therefor, and all trade names, service marks, know how, and trade secrets (collectively referred to as "IP Rights") except as otherwise noted by this Agreement.

Contractor warrants that the services it provides under this Agreement do not infringe, violate, trespass, or constitute the unauthorized use or misappropriation of any IP Rights of any third party. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County from and against all liabilities, costs, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of or related to any claim by a third party that the services provided under this Agreement infringe or violate any third-party's IP Rights provided any such right is enforceable in the United States. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless under this Section applies only provided that: (a) County notifies Contractor promptly in writing of any notice of any such third-party claim; (b) County cooperates with Contractor, at Contractor's expense, in all reasonable respects in connection with the investigation and defense of any such thirdparty claim; (c) Contractor retains sole control of the defense of any action on any such claim and all negotiations for its settlement or compromise (provided Contractor shall not have the right to settle any criminal action, suit, or proceeding without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, and provided further that any settlement permitted under this Section shall not impose any financial or other obligation on County, impair any right of County, or contain any stipulation, admission, or acknowledgement of wrongdoing on the part of County without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld); and (d) should services under this Agreement become, or in Contractor's opinion be likely to become, the subject of such a claim, or in the event such a third party claim or threatened claim causes County's reasonable use of the services under this Agreement to be seriously endangered or disrupted, Contractor shall, at Contractor's option and expense, either: (i) procure for County the right to continue using the services without infringement or (ii) replace or modify the services so that they become non-infringing but remain functionally equivalent.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, Contractor will have no obligation or liability to County under this Section to the extent any otherwise covered claim is based upon: (a) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been modified by or for County (other than modification performed by, or at the direction of, Contractor) in such a way as to cause the alleged infringement at issue; and/or (b) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been used by County in a manner prohibited by this Agreement.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

8. Assignability and Subcontracting

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any portion of it to a third party or subcontract with a third party to provide services required by Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County. Any such assignment or subcontract without County's prior written consent shall give County the right to automatically and immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or advance notice.

9. <u>Insurance</u>

a. General Requirements

Contractor shall not commence work or be required to commence work under this Agreement unless and until all insurance required under this Section has been obtained and such insurance has been approved

by County's Risk Management, and Contractor shall use diligence to obtain such insurance and to obtain such approval. Contractor shall furnish County with certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage, and there shall be a specific contractual liability endorsement extending Contractor's coverage to include the contractual liability assumed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. These certificates shall specify or be endorsed to provide that thirty (30) days' notice must be given, in writing, to County of any pending change in the limits of liability or of any cancellation or modification of the policy.

b. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance

Contractor shall have in effect during the entire term of this Agreement workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance providing full statutory coverage. In signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies, as required by Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, that (a) it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, and (b) it will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work under this Agreement.

c. Liability Insurance

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the term of this Agreement such bodily injury liability and property damage liability insurance as shall protect Contractor and all of its employees/officers/agents while performing work covered by this Agreement from any and all claims for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as any and all claims for property damage which may arise from Contractor's operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or an agent of either of them. Such insurance shall be combined single limit bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence and shall not be less than the amounts specified below:

i. Comprehensive General Liability... \$1,000,000

ii. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance... \$1,000,000

iii. Professional Liability...... \$1,000,000

County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be named as additional insured on any such policies of insurance, which shall also contain a provision that (a) the insurance afforded thereby to County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be primary insurance to the full limits of liability of the policy and (b) if the County or its officers, agents, employees, and servants have other insurance against the loss covered by such a policy, such other insurance shall be excess insurance only.

In the event of the breach of any provision of this Section, or in the event any notice is received which indicates any required insurance coverage will be diminished or canceled, County, at its option, may, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, immediately declare a material breach of this Agreement and suspend all further work and payment pursuant to this Agreement.

10. Compliance With Laws

All services to be performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, County, and municipal laws, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Federal Regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended (if applicable), the Business Associate requirements set forth in Attachment H (if attached), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in programs and activities receiving any Federal or County financial assistance. Such services shall also be performed in accordance with all applicable ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to appropriate licensure, certification regulations, provisions pertaining to confidentiality of records, and applicable quality assurance regulations. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement

and any applicable State, Federal, County, or municipal law or regulation, the requirements of the applicable law or regulation will take precedence over the requirements set forth in this Agreement.

Further, Contractor certifies that it and all of its subcontractors will adhere to all applicable provisions of Chapter 4.106 of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code, which regulates the use of disposable food service ware. Accordingly, Contractor shall not use any non-recyclable plastic disposable food service ware when providing prepared food on property owned or leased by the County and instead shall use biodegradable, compostable, reusable, or recyclable plastic food service ware on property owned or leased by the County.

Contractor will timely and accurately complete, sign, and submit all necessary documentation of compliance.

11. Non-Discrimination and Other Requirements

a. General Non-discrimination

No person shall be denied any services provided pursuant to this Agreement (except as limited by the scope of services) on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, disability (physical or mental), sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital or domestic partner status, religion, political beliefs or affiliation, familial or parental status (including pregnancy), medical condition (cancer-related), military service, or genetic information.

b. Equal Employment Opportunity

Contractor shall ensure equal employment opportunity based on objective standards of recruitment, classification, selection, promotion, compensation, performance evaluation, and management relations for all employees under this Agreement. Contractor's equal employment policies shall be made available to County upon request.

c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Contractor shall comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability shall, solely by reason of a disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in the performance of any services this Agreement. This Section applies only to contractors who are providing services to members of the public under this Agreement.

d. Compliance with County's Equal Be nef its Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with all laws relating to the provision of benefits to its employees and their spouses or domestic partners, including, but not limited to, such laws prohibiting discrimination in the provision of such benefits on the basis that the spouse or domestic partner of the Contractor's employee is of the same or opposite sex as the employee.

e. <u>Discrimination Against Individuals with Disabilities</u>

The nondiscrimination requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60-741.5(a) are incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth here, and Contractor and any subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60–741.5(a). This regulation prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of disability and requires affirmative action by covered prime contractors and subcontractors to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities.

f. History of Discrimination

Contractor certifies that no finding of discrimination has been issued in the past 365 days against Contractor by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other investigative entity. If any finding(s) of discrimination have been

issued against Contractor within the past 365 days by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or other investigative entity, Contractor shall provide County with a written explanation of the outcome(s) or remedy for the discrimination prior to execution of this Agreement. Failure to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and subjects the Agreement to immediate termination at the sole option of the County.

q. Reporting: Violation of Non-discrimination Provisions

Contractor shall report to the County Manager the filing in any court or with any administrative agency of any complaint or allegation of discrimination on any of the bases prohibited by this Section of the Agreement or the Section titled "Compliance with Laws". Such duty shall include reporting of the filing of any and all charges with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other entity charged with the investigation or adjudication of allegations covered by this subsection within 30 days of such filing, provided that within such 30 days such entity has not notified Contractor that such charges are dismissed or otherwise unfounded. Such notification shall include a general description of the circumstances involved and a general description of the kind of discrimination alleged (for example, gender-, sexual orientation-, religion-, or race-based discrimination).

Violation of the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement shall be considered a breach of this Agreement and subject the Contractor to penalties, to be determined by the County Manager, including but not limited to the following:

- i. termination of this Agreement;
- ii. disqualification of the Contractor from being considered for or being awarded a County contract for a period of up to 3 years;
- iii. liquidated damages of \$2,500 per violation; and/or
- iv. imposition of other appropriate contractual and civil remedies and sanctions, as determined by the County Manager.

To effectuate the provisions of this Section, the County Manager shall have the authority to offset all or any portion of the amount described in this Section against amounts due to Contractor under this Agreement or any other agreement between Contractor and County.

12. Compliance with County Employee Jury Service Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code, which states that Contractor shall have and adhere to a written policy providing that its employees, to the extent they are full-time employees and live in San Mateo County, shall receive from the Contractor, on an annual basis, no fewer than five days of regular pay for jury service in San Mateo County, with jury pay being provided only for each day of actual jury service. The policy may provide that such employees deposit any fees received for such jury service with Contractor or that the Contractor may deduct from an employee's regular pay the fees received for jury service in San Mateo County. By signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it has and adheres to a policy consistent with Chapter 2.85. For purposes of this Section, if Contractor has no employees in San Mateo County, it is sufficient for Contractor to provide the following written statement to County: "For purposes of San Mateo County's jury service ordinance, Contractor certifies that it has no full-time employees who live in San Mateo County. To the extent that it hires any such employees during the term of its Agreement with San Mateo County, Contractor shall adopt a policy that complies with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code." The requirements of Chapter 2.85 do not apply if this Agreement's total value listed in the Section titled "Payments", is less than one-hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000), but Contractor acknowledges that Chapter 2.85's requirements will apply if this Agreement is amended such that its total value meets or exceeds that threshold amount.

13. Retention of Records: Right to Monitor and Audit

(a) Contractor shall maintain all required records relating to services provided under this Agreement for three (3) years after County makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed, and Contractor

shall be subject to the examination and/or audit by County, a Federal grantor agency, and the State of California.

- (b) Contractor shall comply with all program and fiscal reporting requirements set forth by applicable Federal, State, and local agencies and as required by County.
- (c) Contractor agrees upon reasonable notice to provide to County, to any Federal or State department having monitoring or review authority, to County's authorized representative, and/or to any of their respective audit agencies access to and the right to examine all records and documents necessary to determine compliance with relevant Federal, State, and local statutes, rules, and regulations, to determine compliance with this Agreement, and to evaluate the quality, appropriateness, and timeliness of services performed.

14. Merger Clause: Amendments

This Agreement, including the Exhibits and Attachments attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference, constitutes the sole Agreement of the parties to this Agreement and correctly states the rights, duties, and obligations of each party as of this document's date. In the event that any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification set forth in the body of this Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent with any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification in any Exhibit and/or Attachment to this Agreement, the provisions of the body of the Agreement shall prevail. Any prior agreement, promises, negotiations, or representations between the parties not expressly stated in this document are not binding. All subsequent modifications or amendments shall be in writing and signed by the parties.

15. Controlling Law: Venue

The validity of this Agreement and of its terms, the rights and duties of the parties under this Agreement, the interpretation of this Agreement, the performance of this Agreement, and any other dispute of any nature arising out of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its choice of law or conflict of law rules. Any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be venued either in the San Mateo County Superior Court or in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.

16. Notices

Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed to be properly given when both: (1) transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed below or transmitted via email to the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address listed below by either being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited for overnight delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that provides a tracking number showing confirmation of receipt.

In the case of County, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

In the case of Contractor, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

17. Electronic Signature

Both County and Contractor wish to permit this Agreement and future documents relating to this Agreement to be digitally signed in accordance with California law and County's Electronic Signature Administrative Memo. Any party to this Agreement may revoke such agreement to permit electronic signatures at any time in relation to all future documents by providing notice pursuant to this Agreement.

18. Payment of Permits/Licenses

Contractor bears responsibility to obtain any license, permit, or approval required from any agency for work/services to be performed under this Agreement at Contractor's own expense prior to commencement of said work/services. Failure to do so will result in forfeit of any right to compensation under this Agreement.

* * *

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES. NO WORK WILL COMMENCE UNTIL THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED BY THE COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE.

For Contractor:		
Contractor Signature	Date	Contractor Name (please print)
For County		
President of the Board of Supervisors County of San Mateo	Date	(please print)

President of the Board of Supervisors



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

NO. 2022-005

On Call Electrical Engineers Professional Services

Solicitation Number	2022-005
Number of contracts expected to be awarded	Up to 3
Estimated Value or Range per contract	\$300,000
Funding Sources	□Federal □State ⊠County ⊠Other
Expected Contract Duration	36 months
Options to Renew	1 option at 24 additional months
Hard & Electronic copy proposals required	Hard (1) Original; Electronic (1) Copy
County Mailing Address (for proposal submissions)	County of San Mateo Department of Public Works 555 County Center, 5th Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 Attention: Roxanne Maquinana
Authorized Contact Person	Roxanne Maquinana
Authorized Contact Person E-mail	rmaquinana@smcgov.org
E-mail Address for Protests	tnewman@smcgov.org
RFP Released	April 18, 2022 PST (tentative)
Pre-Proposal Meeting Date and Time	May 3, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Pre-Proposal Meeting Location	via Zoom Meeting ID: 823 8368 3111 Passcode: 770344
Deadline for Questions, Comments and Exceptions	May 5, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Respond to Questions	May 10, 2022 by 2:00pm PST
Proposal Due Date and Time	May 12, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Interviews	Week of May 16, 2022
Submission to County Board for Approval	June 2022
Anticipated Contract Award Date	June 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION				
	1.1	STATEMENT OF INTENT	3	
	1.2	BACKGROUND	3	
	1.3	DEFINITIONS	3	
CEC	TION	II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS	_	
SEC	HON			
	2.1	ANTICIPATED SERVICES		
	2.2	FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS		
	2.3	PREVAILING RATES	7	
SEC	TION	III - INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS	8	
	3.1	PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES	8	
	Α.	Questions, Comments, Exceptions		
	В.	Revisions to the Solicitation		
	С.	Contact with County Employees	8	
	D.	Pre-proposal conference and site visits		
	3.2	PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS	8	
	A.	Proposal Format	8	
	В.	Technical Proposal Contents	9	
	С.	Supplementary Documents	9	
	D.	Price Proposal	9	
	3.3	PROPOSAL SUBMISSION		
	A.	Submit proposals as directed below		
	В.	Errors in Proposals		
	3.4	PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS		
	3.5	WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS		
	3.6	NO COMMITMENT		
	3.7	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES		
	3.8	PROPOSER SELECTION		
	A.	Determination of Responsiveness		
	В.	Proposal Evaluation		
	С.	Determination of Responsibility		
	3.9	CONTRACT AWARD		
	Α.	Notice of Intent to Award		
	В.	Award Procedure		
	C.	Commencement of Performance PROTESTS.		
		Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address		
	A.	Protest Deadlines		
	В. С.	Protest Contents Protest Contents		
	C. D.	Reply to Protest		
	<i>D.</i> Е.	No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest		
		PUBLIC RECORDS		
	A.	General		
	В.	Confidential Information		

i

SECTION IV - QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA			
4.1	MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS	14	
4.2	ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE	14	
A.	Organizational Capacity:	14	
В.	Experience	14	
4.3	REFERENCES	14	
4.4	EVALUATION CRITERIA	14	
SECTION	I V - INSURANCE	16	
5.1	SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY	16	
SECTION	I VI - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS		

SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 STATEMENT OF INTENT

This Request for Proposals (RFP) seeks submittals for from highly qualified consultants that provide Electrical Engineering consulting services. The requested services will be utilized in capital projects within the County of San Mateo managed under the Department of Public Works ("DPW" or the "Department"). The target start date and term for the proposed services are subject to negotiation of a final agreement, through o the completion of the projects. DPW intends to bring under contract up to three (3) on-call firms to provide services on an as-needed basis each with an aggregate fiscal obligation not to exceed \$300,000.00 during a maximum individual term of three (3) years. Separate projects/assignments under each agreement will be issued as "Task Order(s) – Notice(s) to Proceed" as warranted. The target commencement date for the proposed services is **June 2022**.

1.2 BACKGROUND

The County of San Mateo (the "County" or SMC) covers most of the San Francisco Peninsula. The region covers 744 mi and is home to nearly 800,000 residents. The County is made up of 20 incorporated cities. The County provides for the health and welfare of all people within its borders and serves as the local government for the unincorporated areas. Innovation thrives here in industries including bioscience, computer software, green technology, hospitality, financial management, health care, education and transportation. The County prides itself on how that prosperity fosters its commitment to protecting and enhancing the health, safety, welfare and natural resources of the community.

The Department plans, designs, constructs, operates, manages and maintains all County-owned facilities to ensure they are safe and accessible to residents and clients of County agencies, the general public, and County employees. DPW has a budget of approximately \$200 million and is staffed with over 300 employees in four divisions: Administrative Services and Airports, Engineering and Resource Protection, Facility Services and Road Services, supporting the 46 special districts governed by the Board of Supervisors and administered by the Department.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

Business Day: Monday through Friday except for holidays as observed per the California Government Code.

Confidential Information: Information in any form that is not generally known and treated as confidential by a party, including business, financial, statistical, and non-public personal information, trade secrets, know- how, applications, documentation, schematics, procedures, Personally Identifiable Information, information covered by legal privilege, and other proprietary information that may be disclosed or incorporated in materials provided to one party by the other, whether or not designated as confidential, whether or not intentionally or unintentionally disclosed, and whether or not subject to legal protections or restrictions.

Consultant: Contractor

Contract Materials: finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, specifications, lists, manuals, software, and other written or recorded materials produced or acquired by the Contractor pursuant to the Contract for or on behalf of the County, whether or not copyrighted.

Contract: The agreement between San Mateo County and Contractor awarded pursuant to this solicitation.

Contractor: The person or other entity awarded a Contract in conformance with the terms of this solicitation and any subsequently-agreed upon terms.

County Data: All information, data, and other content, including Confidential Information and other information whether or not made available by San Mateo County or San Mateo County's agents, representatives or users, to a Contractor or potential Contractor or their employees, agents, representatives or Subcontractors, and any information, data and content directly derived from the foregoing, including data reflecting user access or use.

County Systems: The information technology infrastructure of San Mateo County or any of its designees, including computers, software, databases, networks, and related electronic systems.

County: San Mateo County

Deliverables: Goods or services required to be provided to San Mateo County under the Contract.

- Hosting: Storage, maintenance, and management of hardware, software, and San Mateo County Data by a party other than San Mateo County, on machines and at locations other than those operated by San Mateo County, where a party other than San Mateo County has regular responsibility for back-up, disaster recovery, security, upgrades, replacement, and overall responsibility for ensuring that all hardware and software continues to function as intended.
- **Key Employee:** Employees of the Contractor jointly identified by San Mateo County and the Contractor as possessing unique skill and experience that was a material consideration in San Mateo County's decision to award a contract.
- **Major Change:** A change to the specified performance, maintainability, operation, power requirements, compatibility, measurement, user interface, reliability, quantity, scale, quality, terms, delivery method, or requirement of any product or service that affects the obligations of the parties or reflects a substantial alteration in circumstances surrounding the agreement, or is of such a nature that knowledge of the change would affect a person's decision-making process.
- **Project Manager:** The individual identified by San Mateo County as San Mateo County's primary contact for the receipt and management of the goods and services required under the Contract.
- **Subcontractor:** Firms engaged by the Contractor to perform work or provide goods pursuant to the Contract, including vendors and suppliers
- **Task Order or Purchase Order:** A written request from San Mateo County to a vendor to provide goods or services, indicating types, quantities, prices and delivery criteria.

SECTION II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2.1 ANTICIPATED SERVICES

The County of San Mateo Department of Public Works (DPW) is seeking professional engineering services for projects with a focus on additions and alterations to existing facilities, including but not limited to: office buildings, court facilities, detention centers, maintenance buildings, health care centers and clinics, and property and site work, each subject to their appropriate review and/or permitting jurisdiction(s). Proposals will be considered only from consultants who can demonstrate the following minimum qualifications:

- 1. Consulting firm is licensed in the State of California to practice the specific engineering discipline proposed, and is able to effectively provide the required professional services.
- 2. The individual or individuals who will be assigned the responsibility to manage projects shall have significant experience in design and construction consulting within the last five years in the State of California.
- 3. Consultant and staff shall be knowledgeable of all applicable building codes, American with Disabilities Act, federal, state and local by-laws as applicable, including sustainability, conservation and practice of LEED principles and certification processes.
- 4. Firms shall be cable of meeting the schedule set by County of San Mateo, Department of Public Works.

The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- 1. Provide staff and services on an on-call, as-needed basis.
- 2. Provide electrical, instrumentation, and control design and/or construction management services for repair and replacement of City infrastructure.
- 3. Provide in-house or subconsultants for minor civil, structural, mechanical, asbestos and lead abatement, landscaping architecture, and LEED certification.
- 4. Provide the full range of engineering services including preliminary studies, public outreach, drawings, specifications, estimates and other professional services.
- 5. During construction, make on-site visits; review material submittals, shop drawings and test results; respond to RFIs; draft change orders; and review pay estimates.

Typical projects may include:

- 1. Electrical system planning and design
- 2. Feasibility studies
- 3. Safety and code compliance studies
- 4. Automation design
- 5. Electrical and SCADA upgrades to sewer, storm drain, and lagoon pump stations and lagoon motorized weirs.
- 6. Electrical, lighting, instrumentation, and control renovations in buildings.
- 7. Field and pathway lighting in parks.

2.2 FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS

Potential staff are required to pass a Live Scan (DOJ and FBI) background check at the contractor's expense prior to working in County facilities. Potential staff shall follow the directions provided by the Deputy Director of Facilities or his designee to complete this process and will not begin work in a County facility until they have been officially notified in writing by the Deputy Director of Facilities that they have received background clearance.

2.3 PREVAILING RATES

The services contemplated under this procurement include "public works". For all such work funded by this Agreement, the Contractor is required to comply with state prevailing wage law, Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code, commencing with Section 1720 and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000, for any "public works" as that term is defined in the statues, including all applicable flow down provisions. For purposes of complying with prevailing wage laws, the Contractor must comply with the provisions applicable to an awarding body. https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html

SECTION III - INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS

3.1 PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES

A. Questions, Comments, Exceptions

Submit questions, comments, and exceptions, including notifications of apparent errors, to Tory Newman at tnewman@smcgov.org by the Deadline for Questions, Comments and Exceptions. Questions and comments received after the deadline may not be acknowledged.

(1) Request for changes

If requesting changes to a part of this solicitation, identify the specific words or phrases and the sections and paragraphs in which they occur. State the reason for each request and provide alternative suggested language. Failure to submit requests by the deadline will be deemed a waiver of any exception. The County's consideration of a suggestion does not imply acceptance. If sufficient proposals are received with no requested changes, the County may reject those requesting changes.

B. Revisions to the Solicitation

The County may cancel, revise, or reissue this solicitation, in whole or in part, for any reason. Revisions will be posted as addenda on https://publicworks.smcgov.org web site. Proposers are responsible for ensuring that they have received all addenda from Public Works.

C. Contact with County Employees

Violation of the following prohibitions may result in a proposer being found non-responsible, barred from participating in this or future procurements, and becoming subject to other legal penalties.

- (1) As of the issuance date of this RFP and continuing until it is canceled or an award is made, no proposer or person acting on behalf of a prospective proposer may discuss any matter relating to the RFP with any officer, agent, or employee of the County, other than through Public Purchase, to the Authorized Contact Person, or as outlined in the evaluation or protest procedures.
- (2) Proposers may not agree to pay any consideration to any company or person to influence the award of a contract by the County, nor engage in behavior that may be reasonably construed by the public as having the effect or intent of influencing the award of a contract.

D. Pre-proposal conference and site visits

If a pre-proposal conference or site visit is scheduled, answers to questions raised prior to and at the events will be posted on the County's website.

3.2 PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS

A. Proposal Format

Number all pages of the proposal. Label and order each section as follows:

- (1) Cover letter no longer than one page, signed by an individual authorized to execute legal documents for the proposer, identifying the materials submitted.
- (2) Authorized contacts identify the name and title the person to contact regarding the proposal, as well as all other individuals authorized to represent the organization in contract negotiations.
- (3) Table of Contents, listing all major topics and their respective page numbers.
- (4) Exceptions to the solicitation, or to the final revised solicitation, if any.
- (5) Technical Proposal
- (6) Supplementary Documents, as requested
- (7) Price Proposal

B. Technical Proposal Contents

- (1) The Technical Proposal should include a list of qualifications and a maximum of (2) two one-page case studies.
- (2) Explain responses so as to be understood by people unfamiliar with industry jargon. Use drawings, diagrams, schematics and illustrations as needed, but do not simply refer readers to an exhibit or other section of the proposal in lieu of a complete response.
- (3) Addressing each requirement outlined in this solicitation in the order presented, describe how the requested goods and services will be provided.
- (4) Specify any needs for physical space or equipment that the County must provide during the engagement.
- (5) Explain how work, equipment, and knowledge will be transferred to the County or a new vendor at the end of the contract period.
- (6) If applicable or requested, include a project schedule with milestones, deliverables, dates, and a project management plan.

C. Supplementary Documents

If additional documents and materials are appropriate, or have been requested by the County, provide in the following order as applicable:

- (1) Minimum Qualifications, using County forms if provided.
- (2) Organizational Capacity and Experience, describing work of a similar nature undertaken for a similar entity.
- (3) Financial Documents. (may be requested post proposal submission)
- (4) Samples, drawings, illustrations and related items.
- (5) Attachments, certifications, and forms, executed as applicable.

D. Price Proposal

- (1) Place all cost and pricing data in a separate sealed envelope clearly marked "PRICE PROPOSAL".
- (2) If forms and templates are provided for the Price Proposal, use them without modification. Failure to use the forms or templates provided, or modification of them, may result in rejection of the entire proposal.
- (3) Alternative Price Proposals may be submitted, but only in addition to, not in lieu of, the requested Price Proposal. If submitting an alternative Price Proposal, clearly identify it as an alternative.
- (4) Include prices for the base period of service and if applicable, for each additional year including option years.
- (5) Unless otherwise indicated, when applicable, in the price of an item, include all licenses required for operation, as well as upgrades and revisions to software over the term.

Use a pricing rate table similar to the one below:

DDOFFCCIONIAL	RATES PER HOUR			
PROFESSIONAL RATES	2022	2023	2024	OTHER
Principal				
Project Manager				
Registered Engineer				
Project Engineer				
Designer				
CAD Tech				
Administrative				
Other				

3.3 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

- A. Submit proposals as directed below.
- (1) Hard copy submissions
 - (a) If hard copy submissions are also requested, submit proposals with all required documents in a sealed package to the designated County Mailing Address. Within the package, submit the Technical Proposal and the Price Proposal in separate envelopes. Clearly mark the following information on the outside of the package:
 - Proposer Name
 - Return address
 - Solicitation title
 - Solicitation number
 - (b) Submit proposals and all required documentation so as to physically reach the designated address by the Due Date and Time.
- (2) Electronic Copy Submissions
 - (a) Within the package, submit a memory stick with the Technical Proposal, the Price Proposal and all required documents into separately named files.
 - (b) Submit proposal with all required documents within the Hard Submission sealed package to the designated County Mailing Address.
 - (c) Clearly mark each file name with the following information:
 - Proposer Name
 - Solicitation title
 - Solicitation number
 - Proposal Type
- (3) Hand-written responses, whether or not submitted electronically, will be rejected, with the exception that signatures may be hand-written.

B. Errors in Proposals

The County will not be liable for any errors in proposals. Proposals may be rejected as unresponsive if they are incomplete, are missing pages or information, or cannot be opened for any reason. The County may waive minor irregularities, but such waiver will not modify any remaining RFP requirements.

C. Conflicts between Certain Requirements

For discrepancies, the information in the solicitation documents will take precedence in the event of a discrepancy between that information and the information within the solicitation documents. For all other discrepancies, the information in the solicitation documents will take precedence.

3.4 PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS

By submitting a proposal, each proposer certifies under penalty of perjury that:

- Its submission is not the result of collusion or any other activity that would tend to directly or indirectly influence the selection process; and
- Proposer is able or will be able to comply with all requirements of this solicitation at the time of contract award;
 and
- Neither proposer, its employees, nor any affiliated firm providing the requested goods and services has prepared
 plans, specifications, terms or requirements for this solicitation, or has any other actual or potential conflict of
 interest; and
- Proposer is aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the California

Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees, and is unaware of any financial or economic interest of any County officer or employee relating to this solicitation.

3.5 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

Proposals may be withdrawn, modified, or replaced at any time prior to the Due Date and Time. After that time, whether or not a new solicitation is issued for the same subject matter, withdrawal of a proposal may preclude the proposer from participating in the procurement as a proposer or subcontractor, except that an original equipment manufacturer may participate indirectly through a reseller.

3.6 NO COMMITMENT

Neither submission of a proposal nor the County's receipt of proposal materials confers any right to the proposer nor any obligation on the County. This RFP does not commit the County to award a contract, nor will the County defray any costs incurred in preparing proposals or participating in any presentations or negotiations.

3.7 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

If the solicitation results in an indefinite quantity or a requirements Agreement, the goods and services actually requested by the County may be less than the maximum value of the Agreement and there is no guarantee, either expressed or implied, as to the actual quantity of goods and services that will be authorized under the Agreement.

3.8 PROPOSER SELECTION

At any time in the evaluation process, the County may request clarifications from proposers.

A. Determination of Responsiveness

A responsive proposal conforms to the instructions set forth in this solicitation and any modifications to it.

Non-responsive proposals will be rejected. The County, in its sole discretion, may waive non-consequential deviations if the deviations cannot have provided an advantage over other proposers.

B. Proposal Evaluation

The County will establish an evaluation committee which will evaluate responsive proposals based on the criteria specified in the solicitation. The committee may then recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms, or may invite one or more proposers for oral presentations and demonstrations, following which those proposers may be allowed to amend their proposals. After evaluating presentations and amended proposals, the committee may recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms.

C. Determination of Responsibility

The County will make a determination of the responsibility of any proposer under consideration for award, taking into consideration matters such as the proposer's integrity, compliance with public policy and laws, past performance, fiscal responsibility, trustworthiness, financial and technical resources, capacity, and experience to satisfactorily carry out its responsibilities. The County will notify any proposer found non- responsible and allow the finding to be contested.

3.9 CONTRACT AWARD

A. Notice of Intent to Award

Once a decision has been made to award a contract to one or more proposers, the County will post a Notice of Intent to Award, notifying the remaining proposers of their non-selection. The posting may be inclusion of the recommendation to award as an agenda item on the Board of Supervisors schedule.

B. Award Procedure

Contract negotiations are neither an offer nor an implicit guarantee that a contract will be executed. Award, if made, will be to the responsive, responsible proposer offering the overall best value to the County for the

services and goods described in this solicitation, or as applicable, for a specific portion of the services and goods described. Any agreement reached will be memorialized in a formal agreement using the attached Standard Agreement template.

C. Commencement of Performance

After all parties have signed the Agreement, the County will notify the proposer and performance may proceed. Prior to County execution of the Agreement, no County employee may authorize work. Any work performed prior to that time may be uncompensated.

3.10 PROTESTS

Protests that do not comply with the protest procedures outlined below will be rejected.

A. Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address

- (1) Protests or objections may be filed regarding the procurement process, the content of the solicitation or any addenda, or contract award.
- (2) The County will only review protests submitted by an interested party, defined as an actual or prospective proposer whose direct economic interest could be affected by the County's conduct of the solicitation. Subcontractors do not qualify as interested parties.
- (3) Submit protests to Senior Capital Projects Manager by e-mail to Tory Newman at tnewman@smcgov.org or via hard copy to: Tory Newman, Senior Capital Projects Manager, 555 County Center, 5th FI, Redwood City, CA 94063.

B. Protest Deadlines

Submit protests with any supplemental materials by 2:00 PST, as appropriate, on the deadlines set forth below. The date of filing is the date the County receives the protest, unless received after 2:00 PST, or on other than a Business Day, in which case the date of filing will be the next Business Day. Failure to file by the relevant deadline constitutes a waiver of any protest on those grounds. Supplemental materials filed after the relevant deadline may be rejected by the County.

- (1) If relating to the content of the solicitation or to an addendum, file within five Business Days after the date the County releases the solicitation or addendum.
- (2) If relating to any notice of non-responsiveness or non-responsibility, file within five Business Days after the County issues such notice.
- (3) If relating to intent to award, file within five Business Days after the County issues notice of Intent to Award. No protests will be accepted once actual award has been made.

C. Protest Contents

- (1) The letter of protest must include all of the following elements:
 - (a) Detailed grounds for the protest, fully supported with technical data, test results, documentary evidence, names of witnesses, and other pertinent information related to the subject being protested; and
 - (b) The law, rule, regulation, ordinance, provision or policy upon which the protest is based, with an explanation of the violation.
- (2) Protests that simply disagree with decisions of the Evaluation Committee will be rejected.

D. Reply to Protest

The County will send a written response to the protestor and to any other party named in the protest.

E. No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest

Nothing in these protest requirements will prevent the County from proceeding with negotiations or awarding a purchase order or contract while a protest is pending.

3.11 PUBLIC RECORDS

A. General

- (1) All proposals, protests, and information submitted in response to this solicitation will become the property of the County and will be considered public records. As such, they may be subject to public review.
- (2) Any contract arising from this RFP will be a public record.
- (3) Submission of any materials in response to this RFP constitutes:
 - (a) Consent to the County's release of such materials under the Public Records Act without notice to the person or entity submitting the materials; and
 - (b) Waiver of all claims against the County and/or its officers, agents, or employees that the County has violated a proposer's right to privacy, disclosed trade secrets, or caused any damage by allowing the proposal or materials to be inspected; and
 - (c) Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the County for release of such information under the Public Records Act; and
 - (d) Acknowledgement that the County will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the person or entity submitting the materials.

B. Confidential Information

- (1) The County is not seeking proprietary information and will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the proposer. Proposers are responsible for asserting any applicable privileges or reasons why a document should not be produced in response to a public record request.
- (2) If submitting information protected from disclosure as a trade secret or any other basis, identify each page of such material subject to protection as "CONFIDENTIAL". If requested material has been designated as confidential, the County will attempt to inform the proposer of the public records request in a timely manner to permit assertion of any applicable privileges.
- (3) Failure to seek a court order protecting information from disclosure within ten days of the County's notice of a request to the proposer will be deemed agreement to disclosure of the information and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of such information.
- (4) Requests to treat an entire proposal as confidential will be rejected and deemed agreement to County disclosure of the entire proposal and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of any information requested.
- (5) Trade secrets will only be considered confidential if claimed to be a trade secret when submitted to the County, marked as confidential, and compliant with Government Code Section 6254.7.

SECTION IV - QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

4.1 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Proposals will be accepted only from organizations that meet the following required qualifications at the time of proposal submission:

Firm has demonstrated experience as well as in-house resources necessary to effectively provide the required services

The firm's personnel assigned to projects shall have significant experience in electrical engineering services within the last five years in the State of California, and proposal shall indicate their names along with resumes

- Firms shall have extensive knowledge of available project delivery systems allowed under California Public Contract Code, and make such recommendations as to their applicability as appropriate
- Firms shall be capable of meeting the schedule set by County of San Mateo Department of Public Works
- The proposer is legally authorized to do business in the State of California.

4.2 ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE

Provide all of the following regarding the prime proposer and if applicable, all joint proposers.

A. Organizational Capacity:

- (1) Titles and names of staff members who will be on the team responsible for the project, as well as the expected availability of the various individuals. If requested, include the resume of a dedicated, full-time project manager.
- (2) All applicable licenses and license numbers relevant to the project, the names of the holders of those licenses, and the names of the agencies issuing the licenses.
- (3) If portions of work will be performed by subcontractors, names of proposed subcontractors other than suppliers and descriptions of their respective responsibilities.

B. Experience

- (1) The number of years providing services similar to those contemplated
- (2) The number of years providing services to government entities

4.3 REFERENCES

Provide at least three references from successfully completed projects of similar nature to that described in this solicitation, including the name of the organization for which work was performed, and the name, phone number, and e-mail address of an individual at the organization who was responsible for managing and accepting the work. Ensure that contact information is current. If the County cannot contact the reference because of incorrect or out- of-date information, the reference will be deemed not to have been provided.

4.4 EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the following evaluation criteria:

- 45% Method and approach
 - Apparent understanding of the scope of services to be provided
 - Appropriateness of the proposed solution/services
- 30% Experience and organizational capacity
 - Qualifications and experience of both the proposer and key personnel
 - Experience with other public agencies
 - Organizational resources and staff, apparent ability to meet any required timelines or other

requirements

• 25% - Price

SECTION V - INSURANCE

Provide evidence of insurance for each of the checked categories

\boxtimes	General Liability (Including operations, products and completed operations, as applicable.)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, the general aggregate limit either must apply separately to this project or must be twice the required occurrence limit.	
	Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 - per accident for bodily injury and property damage.	
\boxtimes	Workers' Compensation	As required by the State of California	
\boxtimes	Employers' Liability	\$1,000,000 - each accident, \$1,000,000 policy limit bodily injury by disease, \$1,000,000 each employee bodily injury by disease.	
\boxtimes	Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence.	
	Cyber Liability	\$5,000,000 per occurrence for Privacy and Network Security, \$1,000,000 per occurrence for Technology Errors and Omissions To be carried at all times during the term of the Contract and for	
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	three years thereafter.	
	Pollution Liability	\$ - Per Occurrence	
	Pollution Liability (Aggregate)	\$	

5.1 SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY

If the work involves services or goods related to computers, networks, systems, storage, or access to County Data or to any data that may, alone or in combination with other data, become Confidential Information or Personally Identifiable Information, the following insurance is required.

(1) Privacy and Network Security

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liability and remediation arising out of unauthorized use of or access to County Data or software within Contractor's network or control. Provide coverage for liability claims, computer theft, extortion, network breach, service denial, introduction of malicious code, loss of Confidential Information, or any unintentional act, error, or omission made by users of Contractor's electronic data or systems while providing services to the County. The insurance policy must include coverage for regulatory and PCI fines and penalties, crisis management expenses, and business interruption. No exclusion/restriction for unencrypted portable devices/media may be on the policy.

(2) Technology Errors and Omissions

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liabilities arising from errors, omissions, or negligent acts in rendering or failing to render computer or information technology services and technology products, including at a minimum, coverage for systems analysis, design, development, integration, modification, maintenance, repair, management, or outsourcing any of the foregoing.

SECTION VI - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

These are attached for information only. Do not complete this form. The final agreement between the County and any successful proposer will be based on this template.

ATTACHMENT A – Agreement Between County of San Mateo and Contractor

ATTACHMENT A

Agreement No.
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND [Contractor name]
This Agreement is entered into thisday of, 20, by and between the County of San Mateo, a political subdivision of the state of California, hereinafter called "County," and [Insert contractor legal name here], hereinafter called "Contractor.
"Whereas, pursuant to Section 31000 of the California Government Code, County may contract with independent contractors for the furnishing of such services to or for County or any Department thereof

[Enter information here].

Now, therefore, it is agreed by the parties to this Agreement as follows

Whereas, it is necessary and desirable that Contractor be retained for the purpose of

Exhibits and Attachments

The following exhibits and attachments are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference:

Exhibit A—Services
Exhibit B—Payments and Rates
Attachment H—HIPAA Business Associate Requirements
Attachment I—§ 504 Compliance
Attachment IP – Intellectual Property

1. Services to be performed by Contractor

In consideration of the payments set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit B, Contractor shall perform services for County in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A.

2. Payments

In consideration of the services provided by Contractor in accordance with all terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A, County shall make payment to Contractor based on the rates and in the manner specified in Exhibit B. County reserves the right to withhold payment if County determines that the quantity or quality of the work performed is unacceptable. In no event shall County's total fiscal obligation under this Agreement exceed [write out amount] (\$Amount). In the event that the County makes any advance payments, Contractor agrees to refund any amounts in excess of the amount owed by the County at the time of contract termination or expiration. Contractor is not entitled to payment for work not performed as required by this agreement.

3. <u>Term</u>

Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall be from [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of start year], through [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of end year].

4. <u>Termination</u>

This Agreement may be terminated by Contractor or by the [Title of County Department Head] or his/her designee at any time without a requirement of good cause upon thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the other party. Subject to availability of funding, Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for work/services provided prior to termination of the Agreement. Such payment shall be that prorated

portion of the full payment determined by comparing the work/services actually completed to the work/services required by the Agreement.

County may terminate this Agreement or a portion of the services referenced in the Attachments and Exhibits based upon the unavailability of Federal, State, or County funds by providing written notice to Contractor as soon as is reasonably possible after County learns of said unavailability of outside funding.

County may terminate this Agreement for cause. In order to terminate for cause, County must first give Contractor notice of the alleged breach. Contractor shall have five business days after receipt of such notice to respond and a total of ten calendar days after receipt of such notice to cure the alleged breach. If Contractor fails to cure the breach within this period, County may immediately terminate this Agreement without further action. The option available in this paragraph is separate from the ability to terminate without cause with appropriate notice described above. In the event that County provides notice of an alleged breach pursuant to this section, County may, in extreme circumstances, immediately suspend performance of services and payment under this Agreement pending the resolution of the process described in this paragraph. County has sole discretion to determine what constitutes an extreme circumstance for purposes of this paragraph, and County shall use reasonable judgment in making that determination.

5. Contract Materials

At the end of this Agreement, or in the event of termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, and other written materials (collectively referred to as "contract materials") prepared by Contractor under this Agreement shall become the property of County and shall be promptly delivered to County. Upon termination, Contractor may make and retain a copy of such contract materials if permitted by law.

6. Relationship of Parties

Contractor agrees and understands that the work/services performed under this Agreement are performed as an independent contractor and not as an employee of County and that neither Contractor nor its employees acquire any of the rights, privileges, powers, or advantages of County employees.

7. Hold Harmless

a. General Hold Harmless

Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description resulting from this Agreement, the performance of any work or services required of Contractor under this Agreement, or payments made pursuant to this Agreement brought for, or on account of, any of the following:

- (A) injuries to or death of any person, including Contractor or its employees/officers/agents;
- (B) damage to any property of any kind whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging;
- (C) any sanctions, penalties, or claims of damages resulting from Contractor's failure to comply, if applicable, with the requirements set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and all Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended; or
- (D) any other loss or cost, including but not limited to that caused by the concurrent active or passive negligence of County and/or its officers, agents, employees, or servants. However, Contractor's duty to indemnify and save harmless under this Section shall not apply to injuries or damage for which County has been found in a court of competent jurisdiction to be solely liable by reason of its own negligence or willful misconduct.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty

to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

b. Intellectual Property Indemnification

Contractor hereby certifies that it owns, controls, and/or licenses and retains all right, title, and/or interest in and to any intellectual property it uses in relation to this Agreement, including the design, look, feel, features, source code, content, and/or other technology relating to any part of the services it provides under this Agreement and including all related patents, inventions, trademarks, and copyrights, all applications therefor, and all trade names, service marks, know how, and trade secrets (collectively referred to as "IP Rights") except as otherwise noted by this Agreement.

Contractor warrants that the services it provides under this Agreement do not infringe, violate, trespass, or constitute the unauthorized use or misappropriation of any IP Rights of any third party. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County from and against all liabilities, costs, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of or related to any claim by a third party that the services provided under this Agreement infringe or violate any third-party's IP Rights provided any such right is enforceable in the United States. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless under this Section applies only provided that: (a) County notifies Contractor promptly in writing of any notice of any such third-party claim; (b) County cooperates with Contractor, at Contractor's expense, in all reasonable respects in connection with the investigation and defense of any such thirdparty claim; (c) Contractor retains sole control of the defense of any action on any such claim and all negotiations for its settlement or compromise (provided Contractor shall not have the right to settle any criminal action, suit, or proceeding without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, and provided further that any settlement permitted under this Section shall not impose any financial or other obligation on County, impair any right of County, or contain any stipulation, admission, or acknowledgement of wrongdoing on the part of County without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld); and (d) should services under this Agreement become, or in Contractor's opinion be likely to become, the subject of such a claim, or in the event such a third party claim or threatened claim causes County's reasonable use of the services under this Agreement to be seriously endangered or disrupted, Contractor shall, at Contractor's option and expense, either: (i) procure for County the right to continue using the services without infringement or (ii) replace or modify the services so that they become non-infringing but remain functionally equivalent.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, Contractor will have no obligation or liability to County under this Section to the extent any otherwise covered claim is based upon: (a) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been modified by or for County (other than modification performed by, or at the direction of, Contractor) in such a way as to cause the alleged infringement at issue; and/or (b) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been used by County in a manner prohibited by this Agreement.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

8. Assignability and Subcontracting

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any portion of it to a third party or subcontract with a third party to provide services required by Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County. Any such assignment or subcontract without County's prior written consent shall give County the right to automatically and immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or advance notice.

9. <u>Insurance</u>

a. General Requirements

Contractor shall not commence work or be required to commence work under this Agreement unless and until all insurance required under this Section has been obtained and such insurance has been approved

by County's Risk Management, and Contractor shall use diligence to obtain such insurance and to obtain such approval. Contractor shall furnish County with certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage, and there shall be a specific contractual liability endorsement extending Contractor's coverage to include the contractual liability assumed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. These certificates shall specify or be endorsed to provide that thirty (30) days' notice must be given, in writing, to County of any pending change in the limits of liability or of any cancellation or modification of the policy.

b. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance

Contractor shall have in effect during the entire term of this Agreement workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance providing full statutory coverage. In signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies, as required by Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, that (a) it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, and (b) it will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work under this Agreement.

c. Liability Insurance

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the term of this Agreement such bodily injury liability and property damage liability insurance as shall protect Contractor and all of its employees/officers/agents while performing work covered by this Agreement from any and all claims for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as any and all claims for property damage which may arise from Contractor's operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or an agent of either of them. Such insurance shall be combined single limit bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence and shall not be less than the amounts specified below:

i. Comprehensive General Liability... \$1,000,000

ii. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance... \$1,000,000

iii. Professional Liability...... \$1,000,000

County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be named as additional insured on any such policies of insurance, which shall also contain a provision that (a) the insurance afforded thereby to County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be primary insurance to the full limits of liability of the policy and (b) if the County or its officers, agents, employees, and servants have other insurance against the loss covered by such a policy, such other insurance shall be excess insurance only.

In the event of the breach of any provision of this Section, or in the event any notice is received which indicates any required insurance coverage will be diminished or canceled, County, at its option, may, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, immediately declare a material breach of this Agreement and suspend all further work and payment pursuant to this Agreement.

10. Compliance With Laws

All services to be performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, County, and municipal laws, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Federal Regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended (if applicable), the Business Associate requirements set forth in Attachment H (if attached), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in programs and activities receiving any Federal or County financial assistance. Such services shall also be performed in accordance with all applicable ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to appropriate licensure, certification regulations, provisions pertaining to confidentiality of records, and applicable quality assurance regulations. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement

and any applicable State, Federal, County, or municipal law or regulation, the requirements of the applicable law or regulation will take precedence over the requirements set forth in this Agreement.

Further, Contractor certifies that it and all of its subcontractors will adhere to all applicable provisions of Chapter 4.106 of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code, which regulates the use of disposable food service ware. Accordingly, Contractor shall not use any non-recyclable plastic disposable food service ware when providing prepared food on property owned or leased by the County and instead shall use biodegradable, compostable, reusable, or recyclable plastic food service ware on property owned or leased by the County.

Contractor will timely and accurately complete, sign, and submit all necessary documentation of compliance.

11. Non-Discrimination and Other Requirements

a. General Non-discrimination

No person shall be denied any services provided pursuant to this Agreement (except as limited by the scope of services) on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, disability (physical or mental), sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital or domestic partner status, religion, political beliefs or affiliation, familial or parental status (including pregnancy), medical condition (cancer-related), military service, or genetic information.

b. Equal Employment Opportunity

Contractor shall ensure equal employment opportunity based on objective standards of recruitment, classification, selection, promotion, compensation, performance evaluation, and management relations for all employees under this Agreement. Contractor's equal employment policies shall be made available to County upon request.

c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Contractor shall comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability shall, solely by reason of a disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in the performance of any services this Agreement. This Section applies only to contractors who are providing services to members of the public under this Agreement.

d. Compliance with County's Equal Be nefits Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with all laws relating to the provision of benefits to its employees and their spouses or domestic partners, including, but not limited to, such laws prohibiting discrimination in the provision of such benefits on the basis that the spouse or domestic partner of the Contractor's employee is of the same or opposite sex as the employee.

e. <u>Discrimination Against Individuals with Disabilities</u>

The nondiscrimination requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60-741.5(a) are incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth here, and Contractor and any subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60–741.5(a). This regulation prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of disability and requires affirmative action by covered prime contractors and subcontractors to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities.

f. History of Discrimination

Contractor certifies that no finding of discrimination has been issued in the past 365 days against Contractor by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other investigative entity. If any finding(s) of discrimination have been

issued against Contractor within the past 365 days by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or other investigative entity, Contractor shall provide County with a written explanation of the outcome(s) or remedy for the discrimination prior to execution of this Agreement. Failure to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and subjects the Agreement to immediate termination at the sole option of the County.

g. Reporting: Violation of Non-discrimination Provisions

Contractor shall report to the County Manager the filing in any court or with any administrative agency of any complaint or allegation of discrimination on any of the bases prohibited by this Section of the Agreement or the Section titled "Compliance with Laws". Such duty shall include reporting of the filing of any and all charges with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other entity charged with the investigation or adjudication of allegations covered by this subsection within 30 days of such filing, provided that within such 30 days such entity has not notified Contractor that such charges are dismissed or otherwise unfounded. Such notification shall include a general description of the circumstances involved and a general description of the kind of discrimination alleged (for example, gender-, sexual orientation-, religion-, or race-based discrimination).

Violation of the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement shall be considered a breach of this Agreement and subject the Contractor to penalties, to be determined by the County Manager, including but not limited to the following:

- i. termination of this Agreement;
- ii. disqualification of the Contractor from being considered for or being awarded a County contract for a period of up to 3 years;
- iii. liquidated damages of \$2,500 per violation; and/or
- iv. imposition of other appropriate contractual and civil remedies and sanctions, as determined by the County Manager.

To effectuate the provisions of this Section, the County Manager shall have the authority to offset all or any portion of the amount described in this Section against amounts due to Contractor under this Agreement or any other agreement between Contractor and County.

12. Compliance with County Employee Jury Service Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code, which states that Contractor shall have and adhere to a written policy providing that its employees, to the extent they are full-time employees and live in San Mateo County, shall receive from the Contractor, on an annual basis, no fewer than five days of regular pay for jury service in San Mateo County, with jury pay being provided only for each day of actual jury service. The policy may provide that such employees deposit any fees received for such jury service with Contractor or that the Contractor may deduct from an employee's regular pay the fees received for jury service in San Mateo County. By signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it has and adheres to a policy consistent with Chapter 2.85. For purposes of this Section, if Contractor has no employees in San Mateo County, it is sufficient for Contractor to provide the following written statement to County: "For purposes of San Mateo County's jury service ordinance, Contractor certifies that it has no full-time employees who live in San Mateo County. To the extent that it hires any such employees during the term of its Agreement with San Mateo County, Contractor shall adopt a policy that complies with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code." The requirements of Chapter 2.85 do not apply if this Agreement's total value listed in the Section titled "Payments", is less than one-hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000), but Contractor acknowledges that Chapter 2.85's requirements will apply if this Agreement is amended such that its total value meets or exceeds that threshold amount.

13. Retention of Records: Right to Monitor and Audit

(a) Contractor shall maintain all required records relating to services provided under this Agreement for three (3) years after County makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed, and

Contractor shall be subject to the examination and/or audit by County, a Federal grantor agency, and the State of California.

- (b) Contractor shall comply with all program and fiscal reporting requirements set forth by applicable Federal, State, and local agencies and as required by County.
- (c) Contractor agrees upon reasonable notice to provide to County, to any Federal or State department having monitoring or review authority, to County's authorized representative, and/or to any of their respective audit agencies access to and the right to examine all records and documents necessary to determine compliance with relevant Federal, State, and local statutes, rules, and regulations, to determine compliance with this Agreement, and to evaluate the quality, appropriateness, and timeliness of services performed.

14. Merger Clause: Amendments

This Agreement, including the Exhibits and Attachments attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference, constitutes the sole Agreement of the parties to this Agreement and correctly states the rights, duties, and obligations of each party as of this document's date. In the event that any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification set forth in the body of this Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent with any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification in any Exhibit and/or Attachment to this Agreement, the provisions of the body of the Agreement shall prevail. Any prior agreement, promises, negotiations, or representations between the parties not expressly stated in this document are not binding. All subsequent modifications or amendments shall be in writing and signed by the parties.

15. Controlling Law: Venue

The validity of this Agreement and of its terms, the rights and duties of the parties under this Agreement, the interpretation of this Agreement, the performance of this Agreement, and any other dispute of any nature arising out of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its choice of law or conflict of law rules. Any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be venued either in the San Mateo County Superior Court or in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.

16. <u>Notices</u>

Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed to be properly given when both: (1) transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed below or transmitted via email to the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address listed below by either being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited for overnight delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that provides a tracking number showing confirmation of receipt.

In the case of County, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

In the case of Contractor, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

17. Electronic Signature

Both County and Contractor wish to permit this Agreement and future documents relating to this Agreement to be digitally signed in accordance with California law and County's Electronic Signature Administrative Memo. Any party to this Agreement may revoke such agreement to permit electronic signatures at any time in relation to all future documents by providing notice pursuant to this Agreement.

18. Payment of Permits/Licenses

Contractor bears responsibility to obtain any license, permit, or approval required from any agency for work/services to be performed under this Agreement at Contractor's own expense prior to commencement of said work/services. Failure to do so will result in forfeit of any right to compensation under this Agreement.

* * *

THIS CONTRACT IS NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES. NO WORK WILL COMMENCE UNTIL THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED BY THE COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE.

For Contractor:		
Contractor Signature	Date	Contractor Name (please print)
<u>For County</u>		
President of the Board of Supervisors County of San Mateo	Date	(please print)
		President of the Board of Supervisors
		County of San Mateo

STY OF SAN APARTO

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

NO. 2022-006

On-Call Professional Energy Consulting and Design Services

Solicitation Number	2022-006
Number of contracts expected to be awarded	Up to 6
Estimated Value or Range per contract	\$500,000.00
Funding Sources	□Federal □State ⊠County □Other
Expected Contract Duration	36 months
Options to Renew	1 option at 24 additional months
Hard and Electronic Copy Proposals Required	Hard (1) Original; Electronic (1) Copy
County Mailing Address (for hard-copy proposal submissions)	County of San Mateo Department of Public Works 555 County Center, 5th Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 Attention: Roxanne Maquinana
Authorized Contact Person	Suna Yatagama
Authorized Contact Person E-mail	syatagama@smcgov.org
(for electronic-copy communication)	
E-mail Address for Protests	tnewman@smcgov.org
RFP Released	April 18, 2022
Pre-Proposal Meeting Date and Time	May 3, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Pre-Proposal Meeting Location	via Zoom Meeting ID: 823 8368 3111 Passcode: 770344
Deadline for Questions, Comments and Exceptions	May 5, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Respond to Questions	May 10, 2022 by 2:00pm PST
Proposal Due Date and Time	May 12, 2022 at 2:00pm PST
Interviews	Week of May 16, 2022
Submission to County Board for Approval	June 2022
Anticipated Contract Award Date	June 2022

A. TABLE OF CONTENTS

(2)		SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION	3
	1.1	STATEMENT OF INTENT	3
	1.2	BACKGROUND	3
	1.3	DEFINITIONS	3
(2)		SECTION II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS	_
(3)		SECTION II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS	5
	2.1	SUMMARY	
	2.2	FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS	7
	2.3	PREVAILING RATES	7
(4)		SECTION III - INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS	8
	3.1	PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES	8
	Α.	Questions, Comments, Exceptions	8
	В.	Revisions to the Solicitation	8
	С.	Contact with County Employees	8
		Pre-proposal conference and site visits	
	3.2	PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS	8
	Α.	Proposal Format	8
	В.	Technical Proposal Contents	9
	С.	Supplementary Documents	9
	D.	Price Proposal	9
	3.3	PROPOSAL SUBMISSION	9
	Α.	Submit proposals as directed below	9
	В.	Errors in Proposals	10
	3.4	PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS	10
	3.5	WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS	10
	3.6	NO COMMITMENT	10
	3.7	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	10
	3.8	PROPOSER SELECTION	10
	Α.	Determination of Responsiveness	
	В.	Proposal Evaluation	
	С.	Determination of Responsibility	11
	3.9	CONTRACT AWARD	
	Α.	Notice of Intent to Award	
	В.	Award Procedure	
	С.	Commencement of Performance	
	3.10	PROTESTS	
	Α.	Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address	
	В.	Protest Deadlines	
	<i>C</i> .	Protest Contents	
	D.	Reply to Protest	
	Е.	No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest	
	3.11	PUBLIC RECORDS	
	Α.	General	
	В.	Confidential Information	12

(5)		SECTION IV - QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA	14
	4.1	MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS	14
	4.2	ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE	14
	A.	Organizational Capacity:	14
	В.	Experience	
	4.3	REFERENCES	14
	4.4	EVALUATION CRITERIA	14
(6)		SECTION V - INSURANCE	16
5	.1	SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY	16
(7)		SECTION VI - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	18

1.2 SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 STATEMENT OF INTENT

This Request for Proposals (RFP) seeks submittals for professional on-call energy consulting and design services. These services include professional energy consulting and design needs as necessary for a variety of projects in County facilities. Refer to Section II for full Scope of Work description. The County is considering entering into multiple "on-call' independent consultant agreements, each with an aggregate fiscal obligation not to exceed \$500,000.00 during a maximum individual term of three (3) years. Separate projects/assignments under each agreement will be issued as "Task Order(s)" – Notice(s) to Proceed as warranted. The target commencement date for the proposed services is June 2022.

The County of San Mateo Department of Public Works (DPW) seeks proposals from qualified companies with expertise in energy efficiency, renewable energy and decarbonization related engineering and architectural services. Applicants should be experienced in a number of different energy service and sustainable design related activities and have the flexibility to handle the broad scope of services. In addition, the selected company will have a responsive and dedicated design and project management team that is adaptive in addressing the evolving needs of DPW. Companies with experience in servicing government agencies are encouraged to submit proposals.

1.2 BACKGROUND

The Department of Public Works ("DPW" or the "Department") plans, designs, constructs, operates, manages and maintains all County-owned facilities to ensure they are safe and accessible to residents and clients of County agencies, the general public, and County employees. DPW has a budget of approximately \$200 million and is staffed with over 300 employees in five divisions: Administrative Services and Airports, Engineering and Resource Protection, Facility Services, Road Services and Parks, supporting the 46 special districts governed by the Board of Supervisors and administered by the Department.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

Business Day: Monday through Friday except for holidays as observed per the California Government Code.

Confidential Information: Information in any form that is not generally known and treated as confidential by a party, including business, financial, statistical, and non-public personal information, trade secrets, know- how, applications, documentation, schematics, procedures, Personally Identifiable Information, information covered by legal privilege, and other proprietary information that may be disclosed or incorporated in materials provided to one party by the other, whether or not designated as confidential, whether or not intentionally or unintentionally disclosed, and whether or not subject to legal protections or restrictions.

Consultant: Contractor

Contract Materials: finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, specifications, lists, manuals, software, and other written or recorded materials produced or acquired by the Contractor pursuant to the Contract for or on behalf of the County, whether or not copyrighted.

Contract: The agreement between San Mateo County and Contractor awarded pursuant to this solicitation.

Contractor: The person or other entity awarded a Contract in conformance with the terms of this solicitation and any subsequently-agreed upon terms.

County Data: All information, data, and other content, including Confidential Information and other information whether or not made available by San Mateo County or San Mateo County's agents, representatives or users, to a Contractor or potential Contractor or their employees, agents, representatives or Subcontractors, and any information, data and content directly derived from the foregoing, including data reflecting user access or use.

County Systems: The information technology infrastructure of San Mateo County or any of its designees, including computers, software, databases, networks, and related electronic systems.

County: San Mateo County

Deliverables: Goods or services required to be provided to San Mateo County under the Contract.

- Hosting: Storage, maintenance, and management of hardware, software, and San Mateo County Data by a party other than San Mateo County, on machines and at locations other than those operated by San Mateo County, where a party other than San Mateo County has regular responsibility for back-up, disaster recovery, security, upgrades, replacement, and overall responsibility for ensuring that all hardware and software continues to function as intended.
- **Key Employee:** Employees of the Contractor jointly identified by San Mateo County and the Contractor as possessing unique skill and experience that was a material consideration in San Mateo County's decision to award a contract.
- **Major Change:** A change to the specified performance, maintainability, operation, power requirements, compatibility, measurement, user interface, reliability, quantity, scale, quality, terms, delivery method, or requirement of any product or service that affects the obligations of the parties or reflects a substantial alteration in circumstances surrounding the agreement, or is of such a nature that knowledge of the change would affect a person's decision-making process.
- **Project Manager:** The individual identified by San Mateo County as San Mateo County's primary contact for the receipt and management of the goods and services required under the Contract.
- **Subcontractor:** Firms engaged by the Contractor to perform work or provide goods pursuant to the Contract, including vendors and suppliers
- **Task Order or Purchase Order:** A written request from San Mateo County to a vendor to provide goods or services, indicating types, quantities, prices and delivery criteria.

SECTION II - SCOPE OF WORK AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2.1 ANTICIPATED SERVICES

The proposed Agreement(s) anticipated by this RFP comprehensively covers services that can be defined as energy consulting services. The services may include, but are not limited to, some or all of the following services:

- Assistance with projects related to the County's Strategic Energy Master Plan and Government Operation Climate Action Plan
- Technical support in energy efficiency, renewable energy, building electrification and building decarbonization
- Support the development and implementation of energy efficiency projects that reduce the County's environmental impact and utility costs
- Controls system design and programming including new systems and retro-commissioning existing systems
- Conduct energy audits, provide recommendations, cost estimates and energy, emissions and cost savings estimates
- Support with updating the County's Strategic Energy Master Plan, and building specific measures to meet county wide goals
- Support with identifying applicable grant and incentive programs and application assistance
- Provide expertise in latest energy efficient technology, innovative building HVAC systems, building resiliency and renewable energy project development and design
- Technical assistance in Mechanical, Electrical, Controls and Civil engineering for energy related projects

The consulting services requested support this initiative, by helping cover a broad range of activities, including: performing energy audits and feasibility studies on existing facilities, providing training for County personnel regarding energy use strategies and technologies and providing schematic and detailed design services on projects.

These Anticipated Services states requirements for the project, including the services and the tangible work products to be delivered, and the tasks the Department has identified as necessary to meet those requirements. The Department reserves the right, however, to modify specific requirements, based on changed circumstances (such as a change in business or technical environments), the proposal selection process, and contract negotiations with the consultant selected for negotiations, and to do so with or without issuing a revised RFP.

Length of Agreement: The anticipated duration of the agreement will be three years, maximum.

Additional Requirements/Considerations: Within the County's property portfolio, there are secured facilities which will require security background checks for facility access.

2.2 FINGERPRINTING AND BACKGROUND CHECKS

Potential staff are required to pass a Live Scan (DOJ and FBI) background check at the contractor's expense prior to working in County facilities. Potential staff shall follow the directions provided by the Deputy Director of Facilities or his designee to complete this process and will not begin work in a County facility until they have been officially notified in writing by the Deputy Director of Facilities that they have received background clearance.

2.3 PREVAILING RATES

The services contemplated under this procurement include "public works". For all such work funded by this Agreement, the Contractor is required to comply with state prevailing wage law, Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code, commencing with Section 1720 and Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, commencing with Section 16000, for any "public works" as that term is defined in the statues, including all applicable flow down provisions. For purposes of complying with prevailing wage laws, the Contractor must comply with the provisions applicable to an awarding body. https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html

SECTION III - INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS

3.1 PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES

A. Questions, Comments, Exceptions

Submit questions, comments, and exceptions, including notifications of apparent errors, to tnewman@smcgov.org by the Deadline for Questions, Comments and Exceptions. Questions and comments received after the deadline may not be acknowledged.

(1) Request for changes

If requesting changes to a part of this solicitation, identify the specific words or phrases and the sections and paragraphs in which they occur. State the reason for each request and provide alternative suggested language. Failure to submit requests by the deadline will be deemed a waiver of any exception. The County's consideration of a suggestion does not imply acceptance. If sufficient proposals are received with no requested changes, the County may reject those requesting changes.

B. Revisions to the Solicitation

The County may cancel, revise, or reissue this solicitation, in whole or in part, for any reason. Revisions will be posted as addenda on https://publicworks.smcgov.org web site. Proposers are responsible for ensuring that they have received all addenda from Public Works.

C. Contact with County Employees

Violation of the following prohibitions may result in a proposer being found non-responsible, barred from participating in this or future procurements, and becoming subject to other legal penalties.

- (1) As of the issuance date of this RFP and continuing until it is canceled or an award is made, no proposer or person acting on behalf of a prospective proposer may discuss any matter relating to the RFP with any officer, agent, or employee of the County, other than through Public Purchase, to the Authorized Contact Person, or as outlined in the evaluation or protest procedures.
- (2) Proposers may not agree to pay any consideration to any company or person to influence the award of a contract by the County, nor engage in behavior that may be reasonably construed by the public as having the effect or intent of influencing the award of a contract.

D. Pre-proposal conference and site visits

If a pre-proposal conference or site visit is scheduled, answers to questions raised prior to and at the events will be posted on the County's website.

3.2 PROPOSAL CONTENT REQUIREMENTS

A. Proposal Format

Number all pages of the proposal. Label and order each section as follows:

- (1) Cover letter no longer than one page, signed by an individual authorized to execute legal documents for the proposer, identifying the materials submitted.
- (2) Authorized contacts identify the name and title the person to contact regarding the proposal, as well as all other individuals authorized to represent the organization in contract negotiations.
- (3) Table of Contents, listing all major topics and their respective page numbers.
- (4) Exceptions to the solicitation, or to the final revised solicitation, if any.
- (5) Technical Proposal
- (6) Supplementary Documents, as requested
- (7) Price Proposal

B. Technical Proposal Contents

- (1) The Technical Proposal should include a list of qualifications and a maximum of two one page case studies per topic, under the following topics,
- Energy Efficiency Related Technical Services
- Renewable Energy Related Technical Services
- Building Decarbonization related technical Services
- (2) Explain responses so as to be understood by people unfamiliar with industry jargon. Use drawings, diagrams, schematics and illustrations as needed, but do not simply refer readers to an exhibit or other section of the proposal in lieu of a complete response.
- (3) Addressing each requirement outlined in this solicitation in the order presented, describe how the requested goods and services will be provided.
- (4) Specify any needs for physical space or equipment that the County must provide during the engagement.
- (5) Explain how work, equipment, and knowledge will be transferred to the County or a new vendor at the end of the contract period.

C. Supplementary Documents

If additional documents and materials are appropriate, or have been requested by the County, provide in the following order as applicable:

- (1) Minimum Qualifications, using County forms if provided.
- (2) Organizational Capacity and Experience, describing work of a similar nature undertaken for a similar entity. Also refer 3.2.B.1.
- (3) Financial Documents (may be requested post proposal submission).
- (4) Samples, drawings, illustrations and related items.
- (5) Attachments, certifications, and forms, executed as applicable.

D. Price Proposal

- (1) Place all cost and pricing data in a separate sealed envelope clearly marked "PRICE PROPOSAL".
- (2) If forms and templates are provided for the Price Proposal, use them without modification. Failure to use the forms or templates provided, or modification of them, may result in rejection of the entire proposal.
- (3) Alternative Price Proposals may be submitted, but only in addition to, not in lieu of, the requested Price Proposal. If submitting an alternative Price Proposal, clearly identify it as an alternative.
- (4) Include prices for the base period of service and if applicable, for each additional year including option years.
- (5) Unless otherwise indicated, when applicable, in the price of an item, include all licenses required for operation, as well as upgrades and revisions to software over the term.

3.3 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

- A. Submit proposals as directed below.
 - (1) Hard copy submissions
 - (a) Submit proposal with all required documents in a sealed package to the designated County Mailing Address. Within the package, submit the Proposal and the Price Proposal in separate envelopes. Clearly mark the following information on the outside of the package:

- Proposer Name
- Return address
- Solicitation title
- Solicitation number

(2) Electronic Copy Submissions

- (a) Within the package, submit a memory stick with the Technical Proposal, the Price Proposal and all required documents into separately named files.
- (b) Submit proposal with all required documents within the Hard Submission sealed package to the designated County Mailing Address.
- (c) Clearly mark each file name with the following information:
 - Proposer Name
 - Solicitation title
 - Solicitation number
 - Proposal Type
- (d) Submit proposals and all required documentation so as to physically reach the designated address by the Due Date and Time.
- (3) Hand-written responses, whether or not submitted electronically, will be rejected, with the exception that signatures may be hand-written.

B. Errors in Proposals

The County will not be liable for any errors in proposals. Proposals may be rejected as unresponsive if they are incomplete, are missing pages or information, or cannot be opened for any reason. The County may waive minor irregularities but such waiver will not modify any remaining RFP requirements.

C. Conflicts between Certain Requirements

For discrepancies, the information in the solicitation documents will take precedence in the event of a discrepancy between that information and the information within the solicitation documents. For all other discrepancies, the information in the solicitation documents will take precedence.

3.4 PROPOSER CERTIFICATIONS

By submitting a proposal, each proposer certifies under penalty of perjury that:

- Its submission is not the result of collusion or any other activity that would tend to directly or indirectly influence the selection process; and
- Proposer is able or will be able to comply with all requirements of this solicitation at the time of contract award;
 and
- Neither proposer, its employees, nor any affiliated firm providing the requested goods and services has prepared
 plans, specifications, terms or requirements for this solicitation, or has any other actual or potential conflict of
 interest; and
- Proposer is aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the California Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees, and is unaware of any financial or economic interest of any County officer or employee relating to this solicitation.

3.5 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS

Proposals may be withdrawn, modified, or replaced at any time prior to the Due Date and Time. After that time, whether or not a new solicitation is issued for the same subject matter, withdrawal of a proposal may preclude the proposer from participating in the procurement as a proposer or subcontractor, except that an original equipment manufacturer may participate indirectly through a reseller.

3.6 NO COMMITMENT

Neither submission of a proposal nor the County's receipt of proposal materials confers any right to the proposer nor any obligation on the County. This RFP does not commit the County to award a contract, nor will the County defray any costs incurred in preparing proposals or participating in any presentations or negotiations.

3.7 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

If the solicitation results in an indefinite quantity or a requirements Agreement, the goods and services actually requested by the County may be less than the maximum value of the Agreement and there is no guarantee, either expressed or implied, as to the actual quantity of goods and services that will be authorized under the Agreement.

3.8 PROPOSER SELECTION

At any time in the evaluation process, the County may request clarifications from proposers.

A. Determination of Responsiveness

A responsive proposal conforms to the instructions set forth in this solicitation and any modifications to it.

Non-responsive proposals will be rejected. The County, in its sole discretion, may waive non-consequential deviations if the deviations cannot have provided an advantage over other proposers.

B. Proposal Evaluation

The County will establish an evaluation committee which will evaluate responsive proposals based on the criteria specified in the solicitation. The committee may then recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms, or may invite one or more proposers for oral presentations and demonstrations, following which those proposers may be allowed to amend their proposals. After evaluating presentations and amended proposals, the committee may recommend one or more top-ranked proposers for final negotiation of contract terms.

C. Determination of Responsibility

The County will make a determination of the responsibility of any proposer under consideration for award, taking into consideration matters such as the proposer's integrity, compliance with public policy and laws, past performance, fiscal responsibility, trustworthiness, financial and technical resources, capacity, and experience to satisfactorily carry out its responsibilities. The County will notify any proposer found non-responsible and allow the finding to be contested.

3.9 CONTRACT AWARD

A. Notice of Intent to Award

Once a decision has been made to award a contract to one or more proposers, the County will post a Notice of Intent to Award, notifying the remaining proposers of their non-selection. The posting may be inclusion of the recommendation to award as an agenda item on the Board of Supervisors schedule.

B. Award Procedure

Contract negotiations are neither an offer nor an implicit guarantee that a contract will be executed. Award, if made, will be to the responsive, responsible proposer offering the overall best value to the County for the services and goods described in this solicitation, or as applicable, for a specific portion of the services and goods described. Any agreement reached will be memorialized in a formal agreement using the attached Standard Agreement template.

C. Commencement of Performance

After all parties have signed the Agreement, the County will notify the proposer and performance may proceed. Prior to County execution of the Agreement, no County employee may authorize work. Any work performed prior to that time may be uncompensated.

3.10 PROTESTS

Protests that do not comply with the protest procedures outlined below will be rejected.

A. Protest Eligibility, Format, and Address

- (1) Protests or objections may be filed regarding the procurement process, the content of the solicitation or any addenda, or contract award.
- (2) The County will only review protests submitted by an interested party, defined as an actual or prospective proposer whose direct economic interest could be affected by the County's conduct of the solicitation. Subcontractors do not qualify as interested parties.
- (3) Submit protests to Tory Newman, Senior Capital Projects Manager, Tory Newman, by e-mail to tnewman@smcgov.org or via hard copy to: Tory Newman, Senior Capital Projects Manager, 555 County Center, 5th Fl, Redwood City, CA 94063.

B. Protest Deadlines

Submit protests with any supplemental materials by 2 p.m. PST, as appropriate, on the deadlines set forth below. The date of filing is the date the County receives the protest, unless received after 2 p.m. PST, or on other than a Business Day, in which case the date of filing will be the next Business Day. Failure to file by the relevant deadline constitutes a waiver of any protest on those grounds. Supplemental materials filed after the relevant deadline may be rejected by the County.

- (1) If relating to the content of the solicitation or to an addendum, file within five Business Days after the date the County releases the solicitation or addendum.
- (2) If relating to any notice of non-responsiveness or non-responsibility, file within five Business Days after the County issues such notice.
- (3) If relating to intent to award, file within five Business Days after the County issues notice of Intent to Award. No protests will be accepted once actual award has been made.

C. Protest Contents

- (1) The letter of protest must include all of the following elements:
 - (a) Detailed grounds for the protest, fully supported with technical data, test results, documentary evidence, names of witnesses, and other pertinent information related to the subject being protested; and
 - (b) The law, rule, regulation, ordinance, provision or policy upon which the protest is based, with an explanation of the violation.
- (2) Protests that simply disagree with decisions of the Evaluation Committee will be rejected.

D. Reply to Protest

The County will send a written response to the protestor and to any other party named in the protest.

E. No Stay of Procurement Action during Protest

Nothing in these protest requirements will prevent the County from proceeding with negotiations or awarding a purchase order or contract while a protest is pending.

3.11 PUBLIC RECORDS

A. General

- (1) All proposals, protests, and information submitted in response to this solicitation will become the property of the County and will be considered public records. As such, they may be subject to public review.
- (2) Any contract arising from this RFP will be a public record.
- (3) Submission of any materials in response to this RFP constitutes:

- (a) Consent to the County's release of such materials under the Public Records Act without notice to the person or entity submitting the materials; and
- (b) Waiver of all claims against the County and/or its officers, agents, or employees that the County has violated a proposer's right to privacy, disclosed trade secrets, or caused any damage by allowing the proposal or materials to be inspected; and
- (c) Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the County for release of such information under the Public Records Act; and
- (d) Acknowledgement that the County will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the person or entity submitting the materials.

B. Confidential Information

- (1) The County is not seeking proprietary information and will not assert any privileges that may exist on behalf of the proposer. Proposers are responsible for asserting any applicable privileges or reasons why a document should not be produced in response to a public record request.
- (2) If submitting information protected from disclosure as a trade secret or any other basis, identify each page of such material subject to protection as "CONFIDENTIAL". If requested material has been designated as confidential, the County will attempt to inform the proposer of the public records request in a timely manner to permit assertion of any applicable privileges.
- (3) Failure to seek a court order protecting information from disclosure within ten days of the County's notice of a request to the proposer will be deemed agreement to disclosure of the information and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of such information.
- (4) Requests to treat an entire proposal as confidential will be rejected and deemed agreement to County disclosure of the entire proposal and the proposer agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless for release of any information requested.
- (5) Trade secrets will only be considered confidential if claimed to be a trade secret when submitted to the County, marked as confidential, and compliant with Government Code Section 6254.7.

SECTION IV - QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE, AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

4.1 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Proposals will be accepted only from organizations that meet the following required qualifications at the time of proposal submission:

- Firm has demonstrated experience as well as in-house resources necessary to effectively provide the required services
- The firm's personnel assigned to projects shall have significant experience in energy consulting and design services within the last five years in the State of California, and proposal shall indicate their names along with resumes
- Firms shall have extensive knowledge of available project delivery systems allowed under California Public Contract Code, and make such recommendations as to their applicability as appropriate
- Firms shall be capable of meeting the schedule set by County of San Mateo Department of Public Works
- The proposer is legally authorized to do business in the State of California.

4.2 ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE

Provide all of the following regarding the prime proposer and if applicable, all joint proposers.

A. Organizational Capacity:

- (1) Titles and names of staff members who will be on the team responsible for the project, as well as the expected availability of the various individuals. If requested, include the resume of a dedicated, full-time project manager.
- (2) All applicable licenses and license numbers relevant to the project, the names of the holders of those licenses, and the names of the agencies issuing the licenses.
- (3) If portions of work will be performed by subcontractors, names of proposed subcontractors other than suppliers and descriptions of their respective responsibilities.

B. Experience

- (1) The number of years providing services similar to those contemplated
- (2) The number of years providing services to government entities

4.3 REFERENCES

Provide at least three references from successfully completed projects of similar nature to that described in this solicitation, including the name of the organization for which work was performed, and the name, phone number, and e-mail address of an individual at the organization who was responsible for managing and accepting the work. Ensure that contact information is current. If the County cannot contact the reference because of incorrect or out- of-date information, the reference will be deemed not to have been provided.

4.4 EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the following evaluation criteria:

- 40% Method and approach
 - Apparent understanding of the scope of services to be provided
 - Appropriateness of the proposed solution/services
- 40% Experience and organizational capacity
 - Qualifications and experience of both the proposer and key personnel
 - Experience with other public agencies
 - Organizational resources and staff, apparent ability to meet any required timelines or other

Please use a pricing rate table similar to the one below:

<u>Staff Location</u>	Hourly Rate (\$)	Year 3 Increase %
Principal consultant		
Energy Auditor		
Specialist, Controls		
Project Coordinator		

1.5 SECTION V - INSURANCE

Provide evidence of insurance for each of the checked categories

\boxtimes	General Liability (Including operations, products and completed operations, as applicable.)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, the general aggregate limit either must apply separately to this project or must be twice the required occurrence limit.	
	Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 - per accident for bodily injury and property damage.	
\boxtimes	Workers' Compensation	As required by the State of California	
\boxtimes	Employers' Liability	\$1,000,000 - each accident, \$1,000,000 policy limit bodily injury by disease, \$1,000,000 each employee bodily injury by disease.	
\boxtimes	Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)	\$1,000,000 - per occurrence.	
	Cyber Liability	\$5,000,000 per occurrence for Privacy and Network Security, \$1,000,000 per occurrence for Technology Errors and Omissions To be carried at all times during the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter.	
	Pollution Liability	\$ - Per Occurrence	
	Pollution Liability (Aggregate)	\$	

5.1 SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS - CYBER LIABILITY

If the work involves services or goods related to computers, networks, systems, storage, or access to County Data or to any data that may, alone or in combination with other data, become Confidential Information or Personally Identifiable Information, the following insurance is required.

(1) Privacy and Network Security

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liability and remediation arising out of unauthorized use of or access to County Data or software within Contractor's network or control. Provide coverage for liability claims, computer theft, extortion, network breach, service denial, introduction of malicious code, loss of Confidential Information, or any unintentional act, error, or omission made by users of Contractor's electronic data or systems while providing services to the County. The insurance policy must include coverage for regulatory and PCI fines and penalties, crisis management expenses, and business interruption. No exclusion/restriction for unencrypted portable devices/media may be on the policy.

(2) Technology Errors and Omissions

During the term of the Contract and for three years thereafter, maintain coverage for liabilities arising from errors, omissions, or negligent acts in rendering or failing to render computer or information technology services and technology products, including at a minimum, coverage for systems analysis, design, development, integration, modification, maintenance, repair, management, or outsourcing any of the foregoing.

SECTION VI - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS These are attached for information only. Do not complete this form. The final agreement between the County and any successful proposer will be based on this template. ATTACHMENT A – Agreement Between County of San Mateo and Contractor

Agreement No	

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND [Contractor name]

This Agreement is entered into this	day of	, 20	, by and between the
County of San Mateo, a political subd	livision of the state of	f California, hereinafte	er called "County," and
[Insert contractor legal name here], he	ereinafter called "Cor	ntractor.	

"Whereas, pursuant to Section 31000 of the California Government Code, County may contract with independent contractors for the furnishing of such services to or for County or any Department thereof; and:

Whereas, it is necessary and desirable that Contractor be retained for the purpose of [Enter information here].

(2) Now, therefore, it is agreed by the parties to this Agreement

as follows Exhibits and Attachments

The following exhibits and attachments are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference:

Exhibit A—Services
Exhibit B—Payments and Rates
Attachment H—HIPAA Business Associate Requirements
Attachment I—§ 504 Compliance
Attachment IP – Intellectual Property

1. Services to be performed by Contractor

In consideration of the payments set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit B, Contractor shall perform services for County in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A.

2. Payments

In consideration of the services provided by Contractor in accordance with all terms, conditions, and specifications set forth in this Agreement and in Exhibit A, County shall make payment to Contractor based on the rates and in the manner specified in Exhibit B. County reserves the right to withhold payment if County determines that the quantity or quality of the work performed is unacceptable. In no event shall County's total fiscal obligation under this Agreement exceed [write out amount] (\$Amount). In the event that the County makes any advance payments, Contractor agrees to refund any amounts in excess of the amount owed by the County at the time of contract termination or expiration. Contractor is not entitled to payment for work not performed as required by this agreement.

3. <u>Term</u>

Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of this Agreement shall be from [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of start year], through [Month and day], 20[last 2 digits of end year].

4. <u>Termination</u>

This Agreement may be terminated by Contractor or by the [Title of County Department Head] or his/her designee at any time without a requirement of good cause upon thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the other party. Subject to availability of funding, Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for work/services provided prior to termination of the Agreement. Such payment shall be that prorated portion of the full payment determined by comparing the work/services actually completed to the work/services required by the Agreement.

County may terminate this Agreement or a portion of the services referenced in the Attachments and Exhibits based upon the unavailability of Federal, State, or County funds by providing written notice to Contractor as soon as is reasonably possible after County learns of said unavailability of outside funding.

County may terminate this Agreement for cause. In order to terminate for cause, County must first give Contractor notice of the alleged breach. Contractor shall have five business days after receipt of such notice to respond and a total of ten calendar days after receipt of such notice to cure the alleged breach. If Contractor fails to cure the breach within this period, County may immediately terminate this Agreement without further action. The option available in this paragraph is separate from the ability to terminate without cause with appropriate notice described above. In the event that County provides notice of an alleged breach pursuant to this section, County may, in extreme circumstances, immediately suspend performance of services and payment under this Agreement pending the resolution of the process described in this paragraph. County has sole discretion to determine what constitutes an extreme circumstance for purposes of this paragraph, and County shall use reasonable judgment in making that determination.

5. <u>Contract Materials</u>

At the end of this Agreement, or in the event of termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, photographs, reports, and other written materials (collectively referred to as "contract materials") prepared by Contractor under this Agreement shall become the property of County and shall be promptly delivered to County. Upon termination, Contractor may make and retain a copy of such contract materials if permitted by law.

6. Relationship of Parties

Contractor agrees and understands that the work/services performed under this Agreement are performed as an independent contractor and not as an employee of County and that neither Contractor nor its employees acquire any of the rights, privileges, powers, or advantages of County employees.

7. Hold Harmless

a. **General Hold Harmless**

Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind, and description resulting from this Agreement, the performance of any work or services required of Contractor under this Agreement, or payments made pursuant to this Agreement brought for, or on account of, any of the following:

- (A) injuries to or death of any person, including Contractor or its employees/officers/agents;
- (B) damage to any property of any kind whatsoever and to whomsoever belonging;
- (C) any sanctions, penalties, or claims of damages resulting from Contractor's failure to comply, if applicable, with the requirements set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and all Federal regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended; or
- (D) any other loss or cost, including but not limited to that caused by the concurrent active or passive negligence of County and/or its officers, agents, employees, or servants. However, Contractor's duty to indemnify and save harmless under this Section shall not apply to injuries or damage for which County has been found in a court of competent jurisdiction to be solely liable by reason of its own negligence or willful misconduct.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

b. Intellectual Property Indemnification

Contractor hereby certifies that it owns, controls, and/or licenses and retains all right, title, and/or interest in and to any intellectual property it uses in relation to this Agreement, including the design, look, feel, features, source code, content, and/or other technology relating to any part of the services it provides under this Agreement and including all related patents, inventions, trademarks, and copyrights, all applications therefor, and all trade names, service marks, know how, and trade secrets (collectively referred to as "IP Rights") except as otherwise noted by this Agreement.

Contractor warrants that the services it provides under this Agreement do not infringe, violate, trespass, or constitute the unauthorized use or misappropriation of any IP Rights of any third party. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County from and against all liabilities, costs, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of or related to any claim by a third party that the services provided under this Agreement infringe or violate any third-party's IP Rights provided any such right is enforceable in the United States. Contractor's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless under this Section applies only provided that: (a) County notifies Contractor promptly in writing of any notice of any such third-party claim; (b) County cooperates with Contractor, at Contractor's expense, in all reasonable respects in connection with the investigation and defense of any such thirdparty claim; (c) Contractor retains sole control of the defense of any action on any such claim and all negotiations for its settlement or compromise (provided Contractor shall not have the right to settle any criminal action, suit, or proceeding without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, and provided further that any settlement permitted under this Section shall not impose any financial or other obligation on County, impair any right of County, or contain any stipulation, admission, or acknowledgement of wrongdoing on the part of County without County's prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld); and (d) should services under this Agreement become, or in Contractor's opinion be likely to become, the subject of such a claim, or in the event such a third party claim or threatened claim causes County's reasonable use of the services under this Agreement to be seriously endangered or disrupted, Contractor shall, at Contractor's option and expense, either: (i) procure for County the right to continue using the services without infringement or (ii) replace or modify the services so that they become non-infringing but remain functionally equivalent.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, Contractor will have no obligation or liability to County under this Section to the extent any otherwise covered claim is based upon: (a) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been modified by or for County (other than modification performed by, or at the direction of, Contractor) in such a way as to cause the alleged infringement at issue; and/or (b) any aspects of the services under this Agreement which have been used by County in a manner prohibited by this Agreement.

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless as set forth by this Section shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

8. Assignability and Subcontracting

Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or any portion of it to a third party or subcontract with a third party to provide services required by Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County. Any such assignment or subcontract without County's prior written consent shall give County the right to automatically and immediately terminate this Agreement without penalty or advance notice.

9. Insurance

a. General Requirements

Contractor shall not commence work or be required to commence work under this Agreement unless and until all insurance required under this Section has been obtained and such insurance has been approved by County's Risk Management, and Contractor shall use diligence to obtain such insurance and to obtain such approval. Contractor shall furnish County with certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage, and there shall be a specific contractual liability endorsement extending Contractor's coverage

to include the contractual liability assumed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. These certificates shall specify or be endorsed to provide that thirty (30) days' notice must be given, in writing, to County of any pending change in the limits of liability or of any cancellation or modification of the policy.

b. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance

Contractor shall have in effect during the entire term of this Agreement workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance providing full statutory coverage. In signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies, as required by Section 1861 of the California Labor Code, that (a) it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, and (b) it will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of work under this Agreement.

c. Liability Insurance

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the term of this Agreement such bodily injury liability and property damage liability insurance as shall protect Contractor and all of its employees/officers/agents while performing work covered by this Agreement from any and all claims for damages for bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as any and all claims for property damage which may arise from Contractor's operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or an agent of either of them. Such insurance shall be combined single limit bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence and shall not be less than the amounts specified below:

i. Comprehensive General Liability... \$1,000,000

ii. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance... \$1,000,000

iii. Professional Liability...... \$1,000,000

County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be named as additional insured on any such policies of insurance, which shall also contain a provision that (a) the insurance afforded thereby to County and its officers, agents, employees, and servants shall be primary insurance to the full limits of liability of the policy and (b) if the County or its officers, agents, employees, and servants have other insurance against the loss covered by such a policy, such other insurance shall be excess insurance only.

In the event of the breach of any provision of this Section, or in the event any notice is received which indicates any required insurance coverage will be diminished or canceled, County, at its option, may, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, immediately declare a material breach of this Agreement and suspend all further work and payment pursuant to this Agreement.

10. Compliance With Laws

All services to be performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, County, and municipal laws, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Federal Regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended (if applicable), the Business Associate requirements set forth in Attachment H (if attached), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in programs and activities receiving any Federal or County financial assistance. Such services shall also be performed in accordance with all applicable ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to appropriate licensure, certification regulations, provisions pertaining to confidentiality of records, and applicable quality assurance regulations. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any applicable State, Federal, County, or municipal law or regulation, the requirements of the applicable law or regulation will take precedence over the requirements set forth in this Agreement.

Further, Contractor certifies that it and all of its subcontractors will adhere to all applicable provisions of Chapter 4.106 of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code, which regulates the use of disposable food service ware. Accordingly, Contractor shall not use any non-recyclable plastic disposable food service ware when providing prepared food on property owned or leased by the County and instead shall use biodegradable, compostable, reusable, or recyclable plastic food service ware on property owned or leased by the County.

Contractor will timely and accurately complete, sign, and submit all necessary documentation of compliance.

11. Non-Discrimination and Other Requirements

a. General Non-discrimination

No person shall be denied any services provided pursuant to this Agreement (except as limited by the scope of services) on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, disability (physical or mental), sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital or domestic partner status, religion, political beliefs or affiliation, familial or parental status (including pregnancy), medical condition (cancer-related), military service, or genetic information.

b. Equal Employment Opportunity

Contractor shall ensure equal employment opportunity based on objective standards of recruitment, classification, selection, promotion, compensation, performance evaluation, and management relations for all employees under this Agreement. Contractor's equal employment policies shall be made available to County upon request.

c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Contractor shall comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability shall, solely by reason of a disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in the performance of any services this Agreement. This Section applies only to contractors who are providing services to members of the public under this Agreement.

d. Compliance with County's Equal Be nefits Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with all laws relating to the provision of benefits to its employees and their spouses or domestic partners, including, but not limited to, such laws prohibiting discrimination in the provision of such benefits on the basis that the spouse or domestic partner of the Contractor's employee is of the same or opposite sex as the employee.

e. <u>Discrimination Against Individuals with Disabilities</u>

The nondiscrimination requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60-741.5(a) are incorporated into this Agreement as if fully set forth here, and Contractor and any subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. 60–741.5(a). This regulation prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of disability and requires affirmative action by covered prime contractors and subcontractors to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities.

f. <u>History of Discrimination</u>

Contractor certifies that no finding of discrimination has been issued in the past 365 days against Contractor by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other investigative entity. If any finding(s) of discrimination have been issued against Contractor within the past 365 days by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or other investigative entity, Contractor shall provide County with a written explanation of the outcome(s) or remedy for the discrimination prior to

execution of this Agreement. Failure to comply with this Section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and subjects the Agreement to immediate termination at the sole option of the County.

g. Reporting: Violation of Non-discrimination Provisions

Contractor shall report to the County Manager the filing in any court or with any administrative agency of any complaint or allegation of discrimination on any of the bases prohibited by this Section of the Agreement or the Section titled "Compliance with Laws". Such duty shall include reporting of the filing of any and all charges with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any other entity charged with the investigation or adjudication of allegations covered by this subsection within 30 days of such filing, provided that within such 30 days such entity has not notified Contractor that such charges are dismissed or otherwise unfounded. Such notification shall include a general description of the circumstances involved and a general description of the kind of discrimination alleged (for example, gender-, sexual orientation-, religion-, or race-based discrimination).

Violation of the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement shall be considered a breach of this Agreement and subject the Contractor to penalties, to be determined by the County Manager, including but not limited to the following:

- i. termination of this Agreement;
- ii. disqualification of the Contractor from being considered for or being awarded a County contract for a period of up to 3 years;
- iii. liquidated damages of \$2,500 per violation; and/or
- iv. imposition of other appropriate contractual and civil remedies and sanctions, as determined by the County Manager.

To effectuate the provisions of this Section, the County Manager shall have the authority to offset all or any portion of the amount described in this Section against amounts due to Contractor under this Agreement or any other agreement between Contractor and County.

12. Compliance with County Employee Jury Service Ordinance

Contractor shall comply with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code, which states that Contractor shall have and adhere to a written policy providing that its employees, to the extent they are full-time employees and live in San Mateo County, shall receive from the Contractor, on an annual basis, no fewer than five days of regular pay for jury service in San Mateo County, with jury pay being provided only for each day of actual jury service. The policy may provide that such employees deposit any fees received for such jury service with Contractor or that the Contractor may deduct from an employee's regular pay the fees received for jury service in San Mateo County. By signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies that it has and adheres to a policy consistent with Chapter 2.85. For purposes of this Section, if Contractor has no employees in San Mateo County, it is sufficient for Contractor to provide the following written statement to County: "For purposes of San Mateo County's jury service ordinance, Contractor certifies that it has no full-time employees who live in San Mateo County. To the extent that it hires any such employees during the term of its Agreement with San Mateo County, Contractor shall adopt a policy that complies with Chapter 2.85 of the County's Ordinance Code." The requirements of Chapter 2.85 do not apply if this Agreement's total value listed in the Section titled "Payments", is less than one-hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000), but Contractor acknowledges that Chapter 2.85's requirements will apply if this Agreement is amended such that its total value meets or exceeds that threshold amount.

13. Retention of Records: Right to Monitor and Audit

(a) Contractor shall maintain all required records relating to services provided under this Agreement for three (3) years after County makes final payment and all other pending matters are closed, and Contractor shall be subject to the examination and/or audit by County, a Federal grantor agency, and the State of California.

- (b) Contractor shall comply with all program and fiscal reporting requirements set forth by applicable Federal, State, and local agencies and as required by County.
- (c) Contractor agrees upon reasonable notice to provide to County, to any Federal or State department having monitoring or review authority, to County's authorized representative, and/or to any of their respective audit agencies access to and the right to examine all records and documents necessary to determine compliance with relevant Federal, State, and local statutes, rules, and regulations, to determine compliance with this Agreement, and to evaluate the quality, appropriateness, and timeliness of services performed.

14. Merger Clause: Amendments

This Agreement, including the Exhibits and Attachments attached to this Agreement and incorporated by reference, constitutes the sole Agreement of the parties to this Agreement and correctly states the rights, duties, and obligations of each party as of this document's date. In the event that any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification set forth in the body of this Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent with any term, condition, provision, requirement, or specification in any Exhibit and/or Attachment to this Agreement, the provisions of the body of the Agreement shall prevail. Any prior agreement, promises, negotiations, or representations between the parties not expressly stated in this document are not binding. All subsequent modifications or amendments shall be in writing and signed by the parties.

15. Controlling Law: Venue

The validity of this Agreement and of its terms, the rights and duties of the parties under this Agreement, the interpretation of this Agreement, the performance of this Agreement, and any other dispute of any nature arising out of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its choice of law or conflict of law rules. Any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be venued either in the San Mateo County Superior Court or in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.

16. Notices

Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed to be properly given when both: (1) transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed below or transmitted via email to the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address listed below by either being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited for overnight delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that provides a tracking number showing confirmation of receipt.

In the case of County, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

In the case of Contractor, to:

Name/Title: [insert]
Address: [insert]
Telephone: [insert]
Facsimile: [insert]
Email: [insert]

17. Electronic Signature

Both County and Contractor wish to permit this Agreement and future documents relating to this Agreement to be digitally signed in accordance with California law and County's Electronic Signature Administrative Memo. Any party to this Agreement may revoke such agreement to permit electronic signatures at any time in relation to all future documents by providing notice pursuant to this Agreement.

18. Payment of Permits/Licenses

Contractor bears responsibility to obtain any license, permit, or approval required from any agency for work/services to be performed under this Agreement at Contractor's own expense prior to commencement of said work/services. Failure to do so will result in forfeit of any right to compensation under this Agreement.

* * *

(3) THIS CONTRACT IS NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES. NO WORK WILL COMMENCE UNTIL THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SIGNED BY THE COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE.

For Contractor:			
Contractor Signature	Date	Contractor Name (please print)	
(4) <u>For County</u>			
President of the Board of Supervisors County of San Mateo	Date	(Please print)	
		President of the Board of Supervisors	
		County of San Mateo	

Initial and Date:	
iiiitiai ailu Date.	